Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan) was established in Jordan in early 1990 and operates as a Universal Bank
providing commercial, retail and investment banking services through a network of 15 branches spread in Amman,
Zarqa, Irbid and Aqaba.
The Bank strives to be a premier banking institution providing high quality services for individuals and business
in Jordan supported by high quality staff, state-of-the-art banking technology and a worldwide network of ABC
units in 21 countries. ABC (Jordan) offers a unique capability to meet customers’ needs and expectations within
and outside Jordan.
ABC (Jordan) continues to pursue excellence with vigor for the ultimate benefit of its customers and
shareholders.
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The ABC Group is managing change by solidifying its offering
at a regional level, expanding its operations and opening
new avenues across the MENA region, bridging the gaps and
building on its potential by strengthening from the core.
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ARAB BANKING CORPORATION (JORDAN)
Annual Report 2008

During 2008, the Bank maintained a
growth rate consistent with expectations
despite the global downturn.

OUR VISION
To be recognized as the innovative and proactive Bank in Jordan with
the Capacity and Experience of a Premier Financial Group in the Region.

OUR MISSION
• To provide innovative and high quality services and products to our
clients through user friendly, accessible facilities and delivery channels.
• To maximize beneﬁts to our clients and transform their dealing with
the Bank to a pleasant experience.
• To interact with the national and local community interests.
• To invest in providing a healthy and attractive environment for all
personnel.
• To generate increasing value for our shareholders and safeguard the
Bank’s assets.

OUR VALUES
• Complete appreciation of the customer.
• Working as one team with high productivity.
• Credibility and integrity.
• Transparency and full exchange of information.
• Compliance with local and international banking standards.
• Competency in procedures.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Hassan Ali Juma

Dr. Saleh Helwan Al Humaidan

Dr. Khaled Said Kawan

Mr. Yousef Abdel Razeq Abdelmaula

Mr. Hassan Ali Juma EC GC
th,

Chairman as of April 6

H.E. Eng. Shaﬁq Farhan Zawaideh

H.E. Eng. Shaﬁq Farhan Zawaideh AC RC CC
2008– Bahraini Citizen

Director-Jordanian Citizen

Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants

M.A. in Engineering, USA.

(FCIMA), U.K.

Chairman of Jordan Pipes Manufacturing Company; Mr. Zawaideh

President & Chief Executive of Arab Banking Corporation (B.S.C),

serves as Director on the Board of United Investors Company,

Former Managing Director of National Bank of Bahrain; former

Tameer and Union Company for Cigarettes; former Minister

Chairman of Bahrain Telecommunications Company. Also Deputy

of Housing and Public Works; former

Chairman of ABC International Bank plc, U.K, Chairman of Arab

Public Housing Corporation. Mr. Zawaideh participated in the

Banking Corporation Egypt, Arab Financial Services Co. (E.C.).

establishment of various banks and public shareholding, private

Mr. Juma has been a Director of Arab Banking Corporation

and limited liability companies.

General Manager of

(B.S.C.) since 1994. He has more than 34 years’ experience as a
commercial banker.

Dr. Khaled Said Kawan AC CC
Director - Libyan Citizen

Dr. Saleh Helwan Al Humaidan CC

Ph.D. (Doctorat D’Etat) in Banking Laws, University of Paris

Deputy Chairman – Saudi Citizen

(Sorbonne), France.

Ph.D. in Agricultural Economics, Oklahoma State University, U.S.A.

Secretary to Arab Banking Corporation (B.S.C.)’s Board of Directors

General Manager, Arab Investment Company, Riyadh; Member of

since July 1992, Dr. Kawan joined ABC in June 1991, having

the Boards of Saudi International Petrochemical Company, Jubail

previously spent some time with a prime French Law ﬁrm in Paris.

and Saudi Investment Fund, London, U.K.; Chairman, Financial

He was made Legal Counsel and Head of Legal & Compliance in

Investment Bank, Sudan. Dr. Humaidan serves also as Director on

March 2004. Dr. Kawan also represents ABC as a Director on the

the Board of Arab Banking Corporation (B.S.C).

boards of Arab Banking Corporation – Egypt (S.A.E.) and Sahara

He has over 26 years of experience in the economic and

Bank (BNP Paribas).

investment ﬁelds gained through his work at the Saudi Arabian
Ministry of Planning, the Saudi Development Fund, and the

Mr. Yousef Abdel Razeq Abdelmaula AC RC

Arab Investment Company. Dr. Al Humaidan joined Arab Banking

Director – Libyan Citizen

Corporation (B.S.C.) as a Director in 2001.

M.B.A. Hartford University, U.S.A.
Mr. Abdelmaula is the Vice Chairman of Corinthia Group of
Companies, former Executive Director of the Libyan Foreign
Investment Board. He serves also as Director on the boards of
Libyan Foreign Bank and Arab Banking Corporation (B.S.C).
Mr Abdelmaula has more than 20 years of banking experience.
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Dr. Marwan Mamdouh Al Sayeh

Mr. Hareb Masood Al Darmaki

H.E. Mr. “Mohammad Akel”
Eid Al Biltaji

Mr. Sael Fayez Al Waary

Dr. Marwan Mamdouh Al Sayeh GC

Mr. Hareb Masood Al Darmaki AC RC

Director - Jordanian Citizen

Director as of April 6 , 2008– U.A.E. Citizen

Ph.D. in Electrical Engineering, Charles University Prague and

BSc.in Economics and Politics, Bristol University; Master of Arts in

Ecole Genie Electrique de Lyon.

International Studies, School of Advanced International Studies of

Managing

Director

of

th

“Al

Sayeh

Project

Development

John Hopkins University, U.S.A.

Consultancy”; Regional Director for Arab Gulf region for ALCATEL–

Executive Director, Private Equities Department at

ALSTOM Group based in Beirut, Kuwait. Dr. Al Sayeh is the Vice

Investment Authority. Mr. Al-Darmaki is also the incumbent

Abu Dhabi

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Century Investment Group

Chairman of Gulf Capital and Director of Qatar Telecom (Qtel)

and Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Accelerator

(amongst other companies). Mr. Al Darmaki is also the

Technology Holdings. Dr. Al Sayeh is also the President of the

Supervisory Board Member of IPEF Limited. He joined the Board

French Foreign Trade Counselors for the Arab Gulf region and

of Arab Banking Corporation (B.S.C.) in March 2007 with over 30

Vice President of the French - Bahraini Business Club. Director

years’ experience in international ﬁnance.

of the boards of Trustees and Member of the Management
Committee of the Welfare Association, a Palestinian NGO. As
acknowledgment of the French Government in developing the
trade business between France and the Arabian Gulf Region the
French President awarded Dr. Al Sayeh the following decorations:
- “Ofﬁcier de la L’egion d’Honneur”. 1999
- “Chevalier de L’ordre National du Merite” 1986

Mr. Sael Fayez Al Waary EC RC
st

Director as of October 1 , 2008- Jordanian Citizen

B.Sc. (Hons) Computer Science, University of Reading, United
Kingdom.
Mr. Al Waary was appointed to the role of Group Chief Operating
Ofﬁcer for the ABC Group in 2006 prior to that, he was Senior
Vice President and Head of Group Support supervising all the

H.E. Mr. “Mohammad Akel” Eid Al Biltaji EC GC

administrative and support functions within the Bank. In 1997,

Director - Jordanian Citizen

Mr. Al Waary relocated from London to Head Ofﬁce in Bahrain

Higher Diploma in Education, Eartham College, USA.

to direct ABC’s Global Information Technology functions. Mr. Al

Senior Aviation Management Association.

Waary originally joined the ABC Group in 1981 and, from 1986

Advisor to His Majesty King Abdulla II. , Senator – Jordanian

was the General Manager of ABC (IT) Services Ltd., the wholly-

Senate – Chairman, Tourism & Heritage Committee. Former Chief

owned subsidiary and technology arm of the ABC Group.

Commissioner – Aqaba Special Economic Zone Authority. Former

He has over 28 years of experience in Banking. Mr. Al Waary

Minister of Tourism and Antiquities. Former Chairman – Jordan

serves as a Director of Banco ABC Brasil S.A., Arab Financial

Tourism Board and former Senior Vice President Royal Jordanian

Services (B.S.C.) (C) and is on the Board of Arab Banking Corporation

Airlines. Mr. Al Biltaji

Egypt (S.A.E.).

holds a number of high Jordanian and

Foreign decorations.
EC

Member of the Executive Committee
Member of the Audit Committee
GC Member of the Corporate Governance Committee
RC Member of the Risk Committee
CC Member of the Compensation Committee
AC
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Total revenue increased to 31.8 million
dinars in 2008, a growth of 10%.

ABC Jordan’s Head Ofﬁce Building in Amman.
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Mrs. Simona Sabella | General Manager
Bachelor of Arts, University of Jordan (Major English Language)
Mrs. Sabella is Chairman of Arab Co-operation for Financial Investments Co. - ABCI (wholly owned subsidiary of the Arab
Banking Corporation (Jordan)); Member of the Board of Industrial Development Bank (till January 2009) and member
of the Board of Amlak Finance (Jordan). Mrs. Sabella joined Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan) as General Manager on
September 15, 2008. Mrs. Sabella began her banking career at Chase Manhattan Bank N. A. Amman in 1997 and Chase
Manhattan Bank N.A. London, before moving to Bank of Jordan where she held the position of Manager of Corporate
Department. In 1995, she moved to Cairo Amman Bank as Assistant General Manager – Retail Banking and her last
position was Deputy General Manager for Banking Services.
Mr. Tarek Akel | Deputy General Manager
B.A. in Int’l Economics, Texas Tech University; M.A. in Economics, Texas Tech University; MBA in Finance, Baylor
University.
Formerly First Vice President at Arab Banking Corporation, BSC. Before joining ABC Mr. Akel worked for Merrill Lynch
International Bank (Bahrain) as a Financial Consultant and for the International Finance Corporation, World Bank Group,
Washington DC as an Investment Analyst.
Mr. Tony Mukbel | Assistant General Manager for Internal Audit
B.A. in Accounting, University of Jordan; MSc. in Accounting, George Washington University, USA; Certiﬁed Public
Accountant (CPA), member of AICPA since 1983.
Mr. Mukbel is Chairman of Century Investment Group since 2003, Board Member of Jordan Tourism Investment Co. and
Board Member of National Chlorine Industries Co. . Mr. Mukbel has over 23 years experience in auditing ﬁnancial
institutions (USA, Kuwait, United Arab Emirates, Qatar, Jordan).
Mrs. Nuha Matar | Assistant General Manager for Credit
B.A. in Archaeology, University of Jordan.
Mrs. Matar had worked for over 17 years with HSBC Bank, Jordan. Mrs. Matar joined Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan)
in 2001 , and was appointed to the position of Assistant General Manager for Credit and she is currently acting as The
Secretary for ABC Jordan Board Risk Committee. She was a Board and Audit Committee member for the Jordan Travertine
Co., during the period from April 2005 until April 2009.
Mrs. Rana Naddeh | Assistant General Manager for Central Operations
B.A. in Economics and Business Administration, University of Jordan.
Before joining Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan), Mrs. Naddeh worked for 11 years for Union Bank for Savings and
Investment as Trade Finance Manager. In 2001 Mrs. Naddeh joined Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan), and in 2007 she
took over as Assistant General Manager for Central Operations.
Mr. Hisham Al Kayyali | Assistant General Manager for Consumer Banking
B.A. in Business Administration, Beirut Arab University.
Formerly Marketing & Sales Supervisor at Gulf Bank, Kuwait; In 1991 Mr. Kayyali joined Arab Banking Corporation
(Jordan) and in 2003 he was appointed as Regional Manager for Branches & e- Channels and in 2007 he took over as
Assistant General Manager for Consumer Banking. He is a board member of Visa Jordan Card Services.
Mr. Othman Shwaimat | Assistant General Manager for Treasury
B.A. in Finance & Accounting, Yarmouk University; MBA in Finance, Arab Academy for Banking & Financial Sciences.
Prior to joining Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan) in 2008, he had worked for four years with Jordan Kuwait Bank
(Jordan) as Senior Manager / Treasury & Investment and for ﬁve years with Standard Chartered Bank (Jordan) as Head
of Asset Liabilities Management & Money Market / Treasury. In 1989 he worked with Cairo Amman Bank (Jordan) as
Assistant Manager / Treasury & Investment.
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Mr. Othman Al Azhari | Assistant General Manager for Information Technology
B.Sc. Computer Engineer, Soviet Union
Mr. Al Azhari started his banking career at Arab Jordan Investment Bank in 1991 after moving from Sinam Integrated
Systems Co. where he held the position of Section Head of Information Technology Department. Mr. Al Azhari joined
Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan) in 1997 as Supervisor for the Information Technology Department. In 2004 he held
the position of Executive Manager and in 2008 he took over as Assistant General Manager for Information Technology
Department.
Mr. Suleiman Mbaidin | Acting Assistant General Manager for Administration and Human Resources
B.A. in Managerial Sciences, University of Mou’ta; M.A. in Business Administration, University of Jordan
Formerly Assistant Manager for Administration & Employees Dept. at Deposit Insurance Corporation and Senior
Employee at Central Bank of Jordan. In 2005 Mr. Mbaidin joined Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan) as a Manager for
Human Resources Dept. In 2008 Mr. Mbaidin took over as Acting Assistant General Manager for Administration and
Human Resources.
Mr. “Mohammed Naser” Abu Zahra | Acting Assistant General Manager for Corporate Banking
B.A. in Accounting, University of Jordan; MBA in Financial Management, Arab Academy For Banking & Financial Sciences;
Moody’s Risk Management Services, Moody’s Company
Mr. Abu Zahra started his banking career at Jordan Islamic Bank and Islamic International Arab Bank before moving to
Housing Bank for Trade & Finance where he held the position of Senior Credit Ofﬁcer for Corporate Department. In 2002
Mr. Abu Zahra joined Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan) and in 2007 he took over as Acting Assistant General Manager
for Corporate Banking Dept.

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT OF ARAB CO-OPERATION FOR FINANCIAL
INVESTMENTS CO. (ABCI)
Mr. Khaled Zakaria | CEO
B.A. in Finance & Banking Science (Major) Accounting (Minor), Yarmouk Universit 1987.
Mr. Zakaria is the CEO of Arab Co-operation for Financial Investments Co. (ABCI ). He has more than 20 years experience
in treasury and investment in different banks in Jordan.
Mr. Adnan Al Shoubaky | Deputy CEO for Operations
B.A. in Public Administration (Major) and Computer Science (Minor), Yarmouk University 1994 – CIA certiﬁed
Mr. Shobaky has more than 12 years experience in Internal Audit. He is holding the position of Deputy CEO for
Operations, ABCI.
Mr. Moataz Maraqa | Deputy CEO for Investments
B.A. in Business Administration, University of Jordan1991; Masters in Banking & Finance, Arab Academy for Banking
Studies1993.
Mr. Maraqa has more than 14 years experience in investments in private banking at Banks and Financial Institutes. He is
holding the position of Deputy CEO for Investments, ABCI.

7

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Mr. Hassan Ali Juma, Chairman
On behalf of the Board of Directors, it gives me great pleasure to present to you the nineteenth annual report of Arab
Banking Corporation (Jordan). I am very proud of the solid performance achieved in 2008 which was the fruit of the
tireless efforts of the management and staff of the Bank. These achievements are in line with the clear vision that
was set by the Board of Directors. Through strong customer orientation and a prudent banking culture, we were able to
preserve our excellent ﬁnancial standing despite the global ﬁnancial crisis. The ability to withstand economic pressure
and brave the crisis has earned ABC Jordan the trust of its customers and shareholders alike.
The Jordanian economy is still experiencing solid performance in various macro indicators and sectors despite the
external challenges it is facing due to impact of the global ﬁnancial crisis. This is largely due to wise economic policies
and the robustness of the country’s economic infrastructure which enabled Jordan to absorb the impact of external
shocks and limit their negative effects on the local economy.
This was evident in 2008 as the decisive action by the Government of Jordan in managing the ﬁscal policy and its
bold step to guarantee the deposits in the Jordanian banking system greatly softened the impact of the crisis on the
Jordanian economy. The prudent regulations of the Central Bank of Jordan and the sound and disciplined management
of Monetary Policy resulted in protecting and preserving the banking system and reducing the monetary impact of the
crisis on the Jordanian economy. The stability of the exchange rate and the build up of foreign reserves at the time
of crisis are evidence that the monetary policy in Jordan is well-run. In the report issued by the Moody’s Corporation
for global rankings in late 2008 following a review for Jordanian ﬁnancial system institutions, it was stated that the
ﬁnancial system in Jordan is stable. This is a testimony to the soundness of the regulatory environment and the solid
fundamentals of the economy.
At ABC Jordan, we are proud to be a part of this economy and this banking system and to do our share to contribute
to its strength. The Bank has achieved respectable results in 2008 as the total revenue achieved increased from 28.9
million dinars in 2007 to 31.8 million dinars in 2008, a growth of 10%. Furthermore, the Bank’s total assets as of
December 31, 2008 stood at 587 million dinars, which is in line with our total assets at the end of 2007. Clients’
deposits and placements amounted to 390 million dinars at the end of 2008 which represent 67% of total assets. The
Bank maintained its loan book at the same level as 2007 as a part of our strategy to preserve quality and selectivity in
our credit process. Our loan portfolio reached 267 million dinars by year end 2008.
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Delivering outstanding service and
offering innovative products.

The year 2008 also ushered in some administrative changes. Mrs. Simona August Sabella joined the Bank’s family as
a General Manager succeeding Mr. Nour Eddin Al Nahawi, who has moved on to assume another role within the ABC
Group. Mrs. Sabella brings to the management team a wealth of experience in banking that spans over than 30 years.
I take this opportunity to welcome Mrs. Sabella on behalf of the Board of Directors and Shareholders and we look
forward to her contribution towards the prosperity and progress of our Bank.
I am proud to present to you the 2008 ﬁnancial results of ABC Jordan. This report foretells future progress and success
and further contribution towards the prosperity of Jordan and its people as a part of the Jordanian banking system
and the Jordanian economy. The successes of our Bank would not have been possible without the efforts of our most
valuable resource; our people; who are the basis of the successes the Bank has witnessed. So I thank the staff of ABC
Jordan and ABCI for their continued efforts and valued contributions towards the achievement of the Bank’s objectives.
Based on the results of the year 2008 and in line with the strategy to continue enhance the capital base, the Board of
Directors recommends for the approval of the General Assembly to distribute a stock dividend equivalent to 10 percent
of the capital to the shareholders.
Finally, I would like to express my deep appreciation and gratitude to His Majesty King Abdullah the Second
Bin Al-Hussein and to the Jordanian government for their continuing efforts to preserve a strong national
economy. We also thank our shareholders and clients for their trust and support.
May peace be upon you and God’s blessings and His mercy.

Hassan Ali Juma
Chairman
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

PRE - TAX PROFITS

DISTRIBUTED PROFITS
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The Bank’s main Financial Indicators between 2004-2008
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Pre - tax proﬁts
Distributed Proﬁts*
Total Shareholders’ Equity
Share Price
* 2008 proposed dividends
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2008

2007

2006

2005

2004

14.988

15.215

15.952

16.527

8.382

6.447

8.409

11.212

10.350

6.900

85.104

77.342

65.781

52.921

43.024

1.46

2.25

2.62

4.55

4.18

FINANCIAL RATIOS

Main Financial Ratios (2007 & 2008)(JD
2008)
thousand)
2008%

2007%

Return on average equity (RoE)

12.2

14.8

Return on average assets (RoA)

1.7

1.9

Operating expenses/ total income

50.5

46.3

Direct credit facilities/ customers’ deposits
and margin accounts

68.5

65.7

Capital adequacy

31.8

19.5*

Non-performing facilities/ total direct facilities

4

3.9

Employee proﬁtability (JD, 000)

21

23.3

* The calculation of capital adequacy ratio for 2008 was based on Basel II committee resolution, while 2007 was based on Basel I committee
resolution

OWNERS OF 5% OR MORE OF ABC (JORDAN) SHARES
Arab Banking Corporation (B.S.C.), Bahrain, is the sole shareholder of ownership of 5% or more of the ABC (Jordan)
shares, whereby the share ownership of ABC (Bahrain) reached 86.7%.
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BRIEF ON ARAB CO-OPERATION FOR FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS CO. (ABCI)

At ABCI, we maintain certain values that ensure our clients receive maximum return on their investments.

The company, whose roots date back to the early 1990s, concentrates exclusively on the ﬁelds of brokerage, corporate
ﬁnance, equity research, investment and asset management for individual and institutional clients. With more than 59
employees, the company’s client accounts, ranging from brokerage to asset management, were in excess of 10,000 at the
end of December 2008. ABCIs’ presence full local, regional and international investment services.
ABCI is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan). ABCI has a paid-up capital of JD 15.6 million
($22 million). With total assets in excess of JD 35 million ($49 million), ABCI enjoys strong and stable ﬁnancial position.
ABCI offers a wide spectrum of ﬁnancial services, including Local, Regional and International Brokerage, Asset
Management, Financial Advisory and Corporate Finance. Moreover; ABCI is licensed by the Jordan Securities Commission
for Trustee, Financial Advisory and Investment Management.
ABCI’s mission is to serve and offer our clients guidance and consultation on their investments with the philosophy of
creating professional long-term partnerships with them through a wide range of alternative diversiﬁed investments and
opportunities worldwide.

Brokerage Services:
ABCI offers its clients trading and investment services in local, regional and international markets. Below is a description
of the markets that clients may invest in:
Local, Regional and International Brokerage: Cash account , Margin account, Stocks, Bonds, Option, Futures and Short selling
Islamic Investments: Islamic Products and Islamic Derivatives
Asset Management and Investments Advisory: Portfolio Management “Local and Regional markets”, Investments
Advisory and Structure Products
IPO Management
Research
JOD

2008

2007

Total Assets

34,619,510

46,625,058

Total Liabilities

11,004,527

23,724,299

Owners Equity

23,614,983

22,900,759
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ARAB CO-OPERATION FOR FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS CO.
(ABCI) ORGANISATION CHART
as at 31 December 2008
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Investment activity in Jordan is the primary engine that drives economic growth. Despite the high inﬂation rate that
reached 14.9% at the end of 2008 and the start of the global economic crisis that is taking the worlds ﬁnancial markets
by storm, the Jordanian economy achieved a good growth rate in 2008. As a part of its role in driving the monetary
policy in Jordan, the Central Bank of Jordan took a number of measures to contain inﬂationary pressure and protect
the local currency. These measures include maintaining a signiﬁcant interest margin between the dinar and the dollar.
Through implementation of such policies, the Central Bank of Jordan has built large reserves of foreign currencies to
safeguard the value of the Jordanian dinar and to ensure that the needs of the country of foreign currency are secure.
In 2008, the Jordanian government implemented measures to ease the impact of inﬂation on the middle to low income
strata in Jordan by creating a national economic security program which helped in deﬂecting some of the impact of the
rising prices worldwide on Jordanians.
The Jordanian economy continued on a course of growth despite the challenges faced in 2008. This was in no small
part due to the government’s commitment to structural reforms, improved management of public debt and the prudent
regulation of the banking sector. The continuation of the privatization program and the ﬂow of foreign direct and
portfolio investments played a major role in ﬁnancing the current account deﬁcit in 2008. The Central Bank of Jordan
managed to maintain acceptable liquidity levels in the banking system while keeping inﬂation under control.

Financial Results
Despite the turbulent global economic situation and the ramiﬁcations of the global ﬁnancial crisis, ABC Jordan’s
consistency in implementing the strategic vision of the Group of enhancing funding sources, maintaining market share
and diversifying services have allowed ABC Jordan to maintain stable results in 2008.
The total revenue achieved by ABC Jordan in 2008 amounted to 31.8 million dinars compared to 28.9 million dinars in
2007; a 10% increase. The Bank realized an after-tax proﬁt of 9.9 million dinars in 2008; a decrease of only 6% from
the 2007 level. This decrease is negligible in view of the market conditions prevailing in 2008. The slight drop in net
proﬁts in 2008 was due to an increase in operating expenses and some provisions taken by the Bank due to regulatory
and market reasons. It is worth noting that the accumulated change in the fair value for available-for-sale securities
has shown a debit of 890 thousand dinars compared to a credit of 1.3 million dinars at the end of 2007. The Bank’s total
assets as of December 31, 2008 stood at 587 million dinars; in line with the total assets at the end of 2007. Deposits
and cash collaterals amounted to 390 million dinars at the end of 2008, which represent 67% of total assets as of
December 31, 2008. Total equity at year end 2008 stood at 85.1 million dinars; an increase of 10% or 7.7 million dinars
from year end 2007. The return on assets was 1.7% which is in line with the 2007 level. The return on equity was
12.2% for 2008 and the capital adequacy ratio reached 32%.
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Deposits
The earnest marketing efforts on the liabilities side contributed to the preservation of a healthy level of deposits which,
in turn, allowed the Bank to meet or exceed all required regulatory liquidity and funding ratios. Selective diversiﬁcation
of the depositor base contributed to the reduction of the average cost of funds through attracting steady and inexpensive
longer term deposits. This contributed positively to the interest margin and the soundness of the balance sheet.
Customer deposits, the most important source of ﬁnancing, have been stable reﬂecting the increased conﬁdence in
the Bank. Customer deposits and cash collateral amounted to 390 million dinars at year end of 2008 or 77.7% of total
liabilities in line with 2007. The range of liability products offered by the Bank such as traditional current and saving
accounts, term deposit accounts, certiﬁcates of deposit and others contributed to this stability. Current and savings accounts
constituted 23% of all deposits, while term deposit accounts and call accounts comprised 77%, thus maintaining their
signiﬁcance as a source of ﬁnancing and covering the maturity periods of long and short ﬁnancial positions safely.

Credit Facilities Portfolio
As of year end 2008, the Bank maintained the loan portfolio at a level similar to that at year end 2007. This reﬂects
the deliberate and conservative approach to managing risk assets at the time of crisis at ABC Jordan. The efforts of the
management in 2008 focused on preserving the quality as well as the volume of the credit portfolio. Measures were
implemented in response to the market conditions in 2008 to intensify monitoring and enhance collection and recovery.
The net credit portfolio stood at 267 million dinars at year end 2008, which is in line with the 2007 ﬁgures.

Retail Banking
ABC Jordan has always sought to reﬁne its developmental plans to fuel growth through enhancing competitiveness and
diversifying products. The management has always endeavored to reinforce its strength by investing in human resources
and technology platforms. These actions continue to protect the Bank’s market share, increase operating proﬁts and
strengthen the Bank’s competitive position in the market.
To further its objectives and enhance its reach in 2008, the Bank re-opened its branch in the Saqf Al Seil area in
downtown Amman. The Bank is also working towards opening two new branches in the areas of the University of
Jordan and Abu Nsair in Amman. Activities at these two locations are expected to commence in the ﬁrst half of 2009.
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We have the expertise to compete
in today’s complex global ﬁnancial
markets.

In the area of retail products and services promotion, the Bank conducted a marketing campaign to promote credit card
usage. The Bank also conducted a campaign for personal and professional loans in collaboration with one of the largest
telecommunications operators in the local market. In the area of auto ﬁnancing, the Bank conducted a joint campaign
with a large car dealership for the ﬁnancing of vehicle purchases. In 2008, the Bank completed the project for the
acceptance of smart (EMV) cards at ATMs in accordance with global VISA speciﬁcations.
In order to project a highly professional image, the Bank implemented a uniﬁed ofﬁcial uniform for its front line client
service staff across all branches, thus reﬂecting consistency in retail banking throughout the Bank’s network.
The retail credit portfolio reached 131 million dinars at year end 2008 comprising 47% of the total credit facilities
portfolio and achieving a growth of 9 million dinars or 7.5% for the year. Retail customers’ deposits represented 50%
of the total customer deposits at year end 2008. The revenues of the retail sector constituted 28% of the total revenues
of the Bank for 2008.
1- The strategic retail sector plan focuses on achieving the following:
Growing the customer base while concentrating on attracting low-cost and stable deposits which will enhance
2- growth and proﬁtability.
Modernizing the branch network to reﬂect a professional image and provide suitable environment to better serves
3- the Bank’s customers.
4- Expanding the branch and ATM networks to reach all vital areas of the Kingdom in line with the Bank’s strategic goals.
5- Enhancing the Bank’s share of the retail market and consolidating its standing.

Corporate Credit Facilities Portfolio Management
Despite granting new facilities in excess of 36 million dinars in 2008, the global ﬁnancial crisis had a profound impact
of the balances of the corporate credit portfolio at the end of 2008. The total corporate credit portfolio dropped by
9.7 million dinars by year end 2008 from its end of 2007 level. The year 2008 also witnessed large ﬂuctuations in
the portfolio balance as it increased signiﬁcantly in mid year before shrinking in the second half of the year. Despite
the ﬂuctuations in balances and as a result of focusing on increasing accounts’ proﬁtability and enhancement of cross
selling, the Corporate Banking Group realized revenues totaling 16.5 million dinars constituting 32% of the Bank’s total
revenues in 2008.
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In line with the Bank’s strategy, to enhance ABC Jordan’s standing as a pioneering Bank in the area of ﬁnancing
corporates, the management has overseen the following:
•
Building bridges of future cooperation across several sectors of the economy, with banks, corporations and
existing and potential clients.
•
Vitalizing the relationship between the Bank and the rest of the ABC network throughout exchange information
and data on opportunities and beneﬁting from expertise and competencies available within the Group.
•
Enhancing the utilization of facilities granted and maximizing relationship return.
•
Focused and targeted marketing efforts towards increasing the Bank’s revenues from indirect facilities.
•
Ensuring the quality of the portfolio through regular follow-up and monitoring of accounts and avoiding the
regression of any of these accounts.
•
Speedy workouts of problem accounts to ensure recovery and avoid impairment.
•
Creation of a wide network of correspondent banks and activation of relationships with ﬁnancial institutions in a
manner that best serves our clients and in coordination with the Group.
The Corporate Banking Group’s results for 2008 reﬂected these goals as the volume of facilities granted in 2008 was
36 million dinars. The volume of indirect facilities increased by 2.2% reaching 176.3 million dinars in 2008. The total
revenues from trade ﬁnance activities amounted to 1.38 million dinars.

Treasury and Investment
The Treasury Department was able to fulﬁll the Bank’s strategy and efﬁciently manage the clients’ accounts despite the
difﬁcult economic circumstances that followed the ﬁnancial crisis in the second half of 2008.
The Treasury Department achieved its objectives in efﬁciently managing the Bank’s assets and liabilities and managing
the risks of liquidity, proﬁtability and interest rates. Treasury contributed to the proﬁtability of the Bank by providing
distinctive services to the Bank’s clients in the area of foreign exchange trading (spot and derivatives), prudent activities
in the money and capital markets and maintaining a well-diversiﬁed investment portfolio.
The Department achieved the following:
•
Growth of the stock portfolio proﬁts by 24% to 6.3 million dinars in 2008 compared to 5.1 million dinars in 2007.
•
Proﬁts of money market operations reached 2.7 million dinars in 2008 compared to 2.9 million dinars for 2007.
•
Income from foreign exchange activities (for clients’ accounts) reached 1.05 million dinars in 2008 compared to
1.3 million dinars in 2007.
The Treasury Department continued offering outstanding ﬁnancial and investment services to the Bank’s clients in
addition to its role as managing the Bank’s assets and liabilities.
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The Arab Co-operation Financial Investments Co. (ABCI)
The Arab Co-operation Financial Investments Company (ABCI) is the Bank’s investment and brokerage arm. ABCI is a
registered broker on the Amman Stock Exchange and is active in regional and international markets. The Company is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank and is one of the signiﬁcant players in the Jordanian equities market. The Company
manages investments and provides stock brokerage services for its clients in addition to ﬁnancial advisory services.
In its effort to enhance and expand the breadth of services ABCI provides to its clients, the Company has established a
Research and Studies Department that provides its clients with proprietary ﬁnancial analysis and research of individual
securities, sectors and markets and assists them in making their investment decisions. The Company’s Management has
worked towards enhancing its portfolio of services through launching new products and services such as management
of equity issues and Sharia compliant investment products (Murabaha and Mowa’amah). Additionally, the Company is
awaiting the approval from the Jordan Securities Commission to launch the e-trading system.
Financially, the Company achieved a net operating proﬁt of 4.2 million dinars, a growth of 18.6% from the 2007 level
despite the global ﬁnancial crisis. In order to improve performance, the Company reduced administrative expenditures by
1.2% in 2008 compared to 2007. This indicates signiﬁcant efﬁciency gains and improved deployment of sources which
resulted in signiﬁcant savings despite the high inﬂation rates in 2008.
The volume of trading activities executed by the Company reached 1.33 billion dinars for 2008, a growth of 47% from
the previous year. The total assets of the Company dropped to 34.6 million dinars by year end 2008; a 26% decrease
compared to 2007.
Net equity rose by 3% from the year end 2007 level to reach 23.6 million dinars after dividends at the value of 3.5 million
dinars.
ABCI maintained its ranking as the sixth out of 69 registered brokers on the Amman Stock Exchange with a market
share of 3.3%.
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Risk Management and Internal Monitoring Systems
In 2008, the Bank continued to focus on developing effective monitoring systems to manage risk in a balanced manner,
taking into consideration the effect of risks on proﬁtability and international best practices in Risk Management. The
development of the Risk Management practices at the Bank take into account the local regulatory requirements and is
conducted in coordination with the Risk Management practices at the Group level.
In line with the approach taken by the Bank’s Management in modernizing internal control and monitoring systems and
in accordance with the policies related to its strategic plan, a number of revisions to the duties of the components of
the Credit and Risk Management were implemented.
The Credit Department oversaw the drafting of a revised credit policy speciﬁc to Jordan covering corporate facilities and
compatible with the regulations of the Central Bank of Jordan. The Credit Department modiﬁed its work procedures in
line with the new policy.
In the area of operational risks, a new operational Risk Management system was implemented in coordination with
Group Risk Management in Bahrain and with its support. Data relating to operational risk components started to be
entered into the system in August 2008.
In area of Business Continuity, A Disaster Recovery Center (DRC) has been prepared in the Yarmouk area in Amman. Also,
an alternative Business Continuity Center (BCC) has been prepared in Al Rawnaq area. The sites have been outﬁtted
with the necessary hardware and most of the software needed. Communication lines have been installed, internet
connections have been established and applications have been connected with Head Ofﬁce. As of year end 2008, all
the sites requirements had been completed in preparation for testing.
The tireless efforts of Risk Management in 2008 had a positive effect on improving the portfolio quality and streamlining
procedures. This, in turn, had a signiﬁcant impact on improving the Bank’s balance sheet quality as awareness of Risk
Management grew within the Bank. In 2009, the management will continue to focus on Risk Management with
operational risks at the top of its priorities.
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Our core business is taking measured
risks in a controlled manner in line
with our return targets.

Technological Developments
The advances in technology at ABC Jordan in 2008 represents the cumulative effect of the accomplishments of the
past few years. So, for example, the recent successful launch of SMS Banking (short message service), electronic check
clearing (ECC), new Euronet Middle East ATM system, e-banking, EMV compliance, the anti-money laundering system
(AML) and several other systems, have all contributed towards maintaining the Bank’s systems at the cutting edge of
banking technology.
The Information Systems Department continued to achieve its goals in 2008 in maintaining and improving the IT
infrastructure and providing technical support and development. Recent accomplishments include modernizing
the internal and external communication networks, upgrading all hardware and servers in use at the Bank and
implementing the IT requirements of the DRC in line with the requirements of the Management and the Central Bank of
Jordan. These efforts aimed at ensuring data integrity and continuity and providing quality banking services at all times.
New services were introduced and existing services were improved. The ATM services were enhanced by adding 10 new
machines to the network. An electronic payment portal (PayOne) was launched and internet banking was upgraded
to meet the requirements of the Bank’s clients. Several internal systems were upgraded including the Bancassurance
system, the Central Bank of Jordan reporting system, the automation of the Central Operations Department activities
and others.

Administrative and Organizational Developments
The Bank views the human resources as its true capital and therefore believes in the importance of investing in its staff.
Based on this ﬁrm belief, the management continues to work to promote the quality and effectiveness of the workers.
In continuation to implement the re-designing Human Resources Systems initiative, the following policies and
procedures have been redrafted and modernized:
• Incentives and employees’ retention plans.
• Promotions.
• Policies and procedures manual for human resources.
• Employee manual.
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These procedures and policies will help the Bank to attract and retain qualiﬁed and experienced banking
professionals. The management has retained a professional HR consulting ﬁrm to undertake an exhaustive study
that aims to:
•
Survey the salaries and beneﬁts offered by Banks in Jordan and compare the remuneration of ABC Jordan staff
to that of the market and recommend to the management any adjustments necessary on the remuneration
scale and the remunerations systems and procedures to ensure that ABC Jordan is on market and competitive in
attracting and retaining qualiﬁed staff.
•

Assist in designing the Bank’s career path planning policy and procedures to be implemented for all job
positions under study ensuring availability of skilled staff, minimize employee turnover and satisfy the needs
and expectations of employees.

•

Assist in designing the Bank’s succession planning in order to formulate a clear vision on the available opportunities
for the Bank’s employees and facilitate the employee backup process for vacancies as they come up.

The following is a summary of the most important administrative and organizational accomplishments of the Bank in 2008:
1- Completing the repositioning of staff remuneration in accordance with the new salary scale and in line with job
content and requirements.
2- The Board of Directors approved an employee promotion initiative under which promotions were granted to a
number of employees in accordance with the recommendations of Management in 2008.
3- The transportation allowance was revised in line with the increase in fuel prices in 2008.
4- The Management conducted several revisions to the organizational structure to better match the business
requirements. Accordingly, one Deputy was assigned to the General Manager and all support departments were
consolidated under the Support Group. Furthermore, the Credit Support Unit was created under the Corporate
Banking Department.
5- Achieving an effective level of employee performance by focusing on training to increase employee competence
and skills, increase productivity and effectiveness of customer service. 218 training courses were held in 2008
with the participation of 1462 employees.
6- To preserve and enhance the health and well-being of employees and clients, the Bank was declared the Head
Ofﬁce a smoke-free environment as of September 1, 2008.
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The bank aims to establish a broad base of clients and focus on attracting low cost and stable deposits.

In line with its future and strategic vision, the Bank is looking forward to achieve the following goals:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Maximize stockholders equity and increase the return on them.
Strengthen the Bank’s capital base and ﬁnancial position.
Enhance the quality of assets and provide the necessary security and protection components.
Develop the Bank’s competitiveness and increase its share in the banking sector.
Increase the Bank’s market share of retail loans and increase their ratio to total loans extended.
Expand the scope of facilities provided to SMEs.
Maintain the growth and improve the quality of corporate facilities portfolio and maintain a low level of risk.
Expand the scope of investment services provided and offer new investment programs and products.
Establish a broad base of clients and focus on attracting low-cost and stable deposits.
Pursue the Branches’ Development Plan through opening new branches and enhancing existing branches in
accordance with the Bank’s strategic goals.
Increase the number of ATMs and improve the services provided through them.
Keep pace with technological developments and use state-of-the-art technologies in order to improve the
services provided, particularly in the ﬁeld of e-services.
Develop human resources, raise productivity and provide appropriate work environment for all employees.
Continue to attract skilled and experienced employees.
Continue to control expenditures and, at the same time, maintain a high-level quality of services.
Participate in developing the local community.
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ATM services were enhanced by adding
10 new machines to the network.

23

SHAREHOLDINGS OF THE CHAIRMAN, MEMBERS OF THE BOARD,
EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT AND THEIR RELATIVES

A) Shareholdings of the Chairman and Members of the Board
Name

Country of
Registration

Mr. Hassan Ali Juma

Number of Shares
2008

2007

Bahrain

575

-

Saudi Arabia

1614

85721

Saudi Arabia

1610

1400

Bahrain

55881946

48590195

Arab Banking Corporation, (B.S.C.) Bahrain,
represented by: Mr. Sael Fayez Al Waary

Chairman as of
6/4/2008
Chairman till
6/4/2008
Deputy
Chairman
Director as of
1/10/2008

Arab Banking Corporation, (B.S.C.) Bahrain,
represented by: Mr. Nour Eddin Salah Nahawi

Director till
15/9/2008

Bahrain

55881946

48590195

Shereen Investments Limited, represented by:
Mr. Hareb Masood Al Darmaki

Director as of
6/4/2008

Jersey

575

500

Shereen Investments Limited, represented by:
Mr. Mubarak Rashed Al Mansouri

Director till
6/4/2008

Jersey

575

500

Arab Banking Corporation (Securities) W.L.L.,
Bahrain, represented by: Dr. Khaled Said Kawan

Director

Bahrain

1610

1400

Mr. Yousef Abdel Razeq Abdelmaula

Director

Libya

1167

1015

H.E. Mr. “Mohammad Akel” Eid Al Biltaji

Director

Jordan

3269

2843

Dr. Marwan Mamdouh Al Sayeh

Director

Jordan

16959

10813

H.E. Eng. Shaﬁq Farhan Zawaideh

Director

Jordan

398748

227500

Mr. Ghazi Mahmoud Abdul-Jawad
Dr. Saleh Helwan Al Humaidan

B) Shareholdings of the Executive Management
Name

Nationality

Number of Shares
2008

2007

Mr. Nour Eddin Salah
Nahawi

CEO till 15/9/2008

Jordanian

337

16250

Mr. Tony Shaher Mukbel

Asst. GM/ Internal Audit

Jordanian

-

2292

C) Shareholdings of the Relatives of Members of the Board
Name

Mrs. Muna Wadea’ Oweis
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Nationality

H.E. Eng. Shaﬁq Zawaideh’s wife

Jordanian

Number of Shares
2008

2007

16465

14318

REPRESENTATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan) represents, as far as it knows and believes, that there
are no fundamental issues that could affect the Bank’s ability to continue its activity throughout the next ﬁscal year
of 2009. The Board also acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the ﬁnancial statements; that the information
cited in the Board of Directors’ Report is in line with the enclosed ﬁnancial statements; and that the Bank has an
effective and efﬁcient Internal Control System.

Hassan Ali Juma
Chairman

Saleh Helwan Al Humaidan
Deputy Chairman

Shaﬁq Farhan Zawaideh
Director

Khaled Said Kawan
Director

Yousef Abdel Razeq Abdelmaula
Director

Marwan Mamdouh Al Sayeh
Director

“Mohammad Akel” Eid Al Biltaji
Director

Hareb Masood Al Darmaki
Director

Sael Fayez Al Waary
Director

REPRESENTATION OF AUTHENTICITY OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Management of the Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan) represents the authenticity, accuracy and precision of the
information and ﬁnancial statements cited in this report.

Hassan Ali Juma
Chairman

Simona August Sabella
General Manager

Basel Najib Al Naber
Chief Financial Ofﬁcer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ARAB BANKING CORPORATION (JORDAN)
AMMAN - JORDAN

We have audited the accompanying ﬁnancial statements of ARAB BANKING CORPORATION (JORDAN) (a public
shareholding company), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2008 and the
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash ﬂow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of signiﬁcant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these ﬁnancial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of ﬁnancial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these ﬁnancial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the ﬁnancial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
ﬁnancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the ﬁnancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the ﬁnancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate for the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the ﬁnancial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufﬁcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

OPINION
In our opinion, the consolidated ﬁnancial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the ﬁnancial position
of the Bank as of December 31, 2008 and its ﬁnancial performance and its cash ﬂows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
Amman – Jordan
15 February 2009
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
31 December 2008
(All ﬁgures in Jordanian Dinars)

Notes

2008

2007

4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
18
12

67,091,186
99,500,957
5,226,870
2,862
267,259,973
127,710,229
10,547,799
876,273
458,762
8,331,317

46,990,561
158,863,426
1,169,850
359,166
267,108,022
106,018,593
10,900,789
924,447
56,920
8,788,278

587,006,228

601,180,052

75,624,992
334,061,826
56,022,749
13,741,484
1,194,271
5,952,877
15,304,425

75,157,123
367,634,049
38,991,631
14,993,845
452,728
5,408,145
365,017
20,832,747

501,902,624

523,835,285

ASSETS
Cash and balances with Central Banks
Balances at banks and ﬁnancial institutions
Deposits at banks and ﬁnancial institutions
Financial assets held for trading
Direct credit facilities
Financial assets available for sale
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES Banks and ﬁnancial institutions’ deposits
Customers’ deposits
Margin accounts
Loans and borrowings
Sundry provisions
Income tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities

13
14
15
16
17
18
18
19

TOTAL LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Paid in capital
Statutory reserve
Voluntary reserve
General banking risk reserve
Cumulative changes in fair value
Retained earnings
TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

20
21
21
21
22
23

64,471,875
10,060,876
598,138
2,774,240
(889,738)
8,088,213

56,062,500
8,562,083
420,994
2,529,960
1,271,308
8,497,922

85,103,604

77,344,767

587,006,228

601,180,052

The accompanying notes from 1 to 45 are an integral part of these ﬁnancial statements and should be read with them.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
Year ended 31 December 2008
(All ﬁgures in Jordanian Dinars)

Notes
Interest income
Interest expense

24
25

NET INTEREST INCOME
Net commission
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NET INTEREST AND COMMISSION INCOME

2008

2007

41,406,739
(19,318,400)

39,174,387
(21,586,422)

22,088,339

17,587,965

2,356,339

2,116,119

24,444,678

19,704,084

OTHER INCOME –
Net gain from foreign currencies
Net (Loss) gain from ﬁnancial assets held for trading
Net (Loss) gain from ﬁnancial assets available for sale
Other income

27
28
29
30

GROSS PROFIT

Employees’ expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Other expenses
Impairment loss on direct credit facilities
Sundry provisions

1,045,221
(398,011)
(1,043,028)
7,822,187
31,871,047

28,931,063

(8,037,906)
(1,268,128)
(5,530,638)
(1,243,824)
(802,619)

(6,994,595)
(1,193,607)
(5,217,972)
20,351
(330,000)

TOTAL EXPENSES

(16,883,115)

(13,715,823)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

14,987,932

15,215,240

(5,068,049)

(4,657,272)

9,919,883

10,557,968

0,154

0,164

Income tax expense

31
10 , 11
32
8
17

1,316,855
119,170
239,283
7,551,671

18

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

33

The accompanying notes from 1 to 45 are an integral part of these ﬁnancial statements and should be read with them.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Year ended 31 December 2008
(All ﬁgures in Jordanian Dinars)

2008 Balance as of January 1, 2008

Paid in
Capital

Statutory
Reserve

56,062,500 8,562,083

Cumulative
General
Voluntary Banking Risk Changes in Fair Retained
Earnings
Values
reserve
Reserve
420,994

2,529,960

1,271,308

8,497,922

Total
Equity
77,344,767

Net movement in cumulative changes in
fair value after tax

-

-

-

-

(2,161,046)

-

(2,161,046)

Total income and expenses for the year
recognised directly in equity

-

-

-

-

(2,161,046)

-

(2,161,046)

Proﬁt for the year

-

-

-

-

-

9,919,883

9,919,883

Total income and expenses
for the year

-

-

-

-

(2,161,046)

9,919,883

7,758,837

8,409,375

-

-

-

-

(8,409,375)

-

-

(1,920,217)

-

8,088,213

85,103,604

Increase in capital
Transfer to/from reserves

BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2008

1,498,793

177,144

244,280

64,471,875 10,060,876

598,138

2,774,240

(889,738)

44,850,000 7,004,848 2,663,494

2,099,960

35,978

-

2007 Balance as of January 1, 2007

9,127,091 65,781,371

Net movement in cumulative changes in
fair value after tax

-

-

-

-

1,235,330

Previous year adjustments

-

-

-

-

-

(229,902)

Total income and expenses for the year
recognised directly in equity

-

-

-

-

1,235,330

(229,902)

Proﬁt for the year

-

-

-

-

-

Total income and expenses
for the year

-

-

-

-

11,212,500

-

(2,242,500)

-

Increase in capital
Transfer to/from reserves

BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2007

-

1,557,235

56,062,500 8,562,083

420,994

430,000
2,529,960

-

1,235,330
(229,902)

1,005,428

10,557,968

10,557,968

1,235,330 10,328,066

11,563,396

-

(8,970,000)

-

-

(1,987,235)

-

1,271,308

8,497,922

77,344,767

The accompanying notes from 1 to 45 are an integral part of these ﬁnancial statements and should be read with them.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Year ended 31 December 2008
(All ﬁgures in Jordanian Dinars)
Notes

2008

2007

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Proﬁt before income tax

14,987,932

15,215,240

ADJUSTMENTS FOR Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment loss on direct credit facilities
Sundry provisions
Impairment loss on available for sale portfolio
Unrealized losses from trading investments
Effect of exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Previous years adjustments

1,268,128
1,243,824
802,619
1,348,659
(872,423)
272,159
-

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE CHANGES IN
OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

1,193,607
(20,351)
330,000
942,072
97,770
(1,126,559)
(229,902)

19,050,898

16,401,877

1,000,650

9,999,204

CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES Decrease in balances with Central Banks
maturing after more than three months
(Increase) in deposits at banks and ﬁnancial
institutions maturing after more than three months
Decrease (Increase) in ﬁnancial assets held for trading
(Increase) in direct credit facilities
Decrease in other operating assets
(Decrease) Increase in customers’ deposits
Increase in margin accounts
(Decrease) Increase in other liabilities
Utilized sundry provisions

(4,057,020)
356,304
(1,395,775)
456,960
(33,572,223)
17,031,118
(5,521,329)
(61,076)

Net cash (used in) from operating
activities before income tax

(6,711,493)

Income tax paid

(4,505,753)

Net cash (used in) from operating activities

(317,187)
(26,557,905)
3,865,893
116,145,743
8,811,115
10,748,049
139,096,789
(4,203,910)

(11,217,246)

134,892,879

Redemption of held to maturity investments
Purchase of available for sale investments
Proceeds from sale of available for sale investments
Purchase of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

(78,137,860)
52,152,096
(929,426)
21,145
(230,839)

1,994,543
(59,035,196)
31,821,959
(4,307,144)
2,259,273
(139,876)

Net cash used in investing activities

(27,124,884)

(27,406,441)

Repayment of loans and borrowings
Dividends paid

(1,252,361)
(6,995)

(42,452,296)
(5,212)

Net cash used in ﬁnancing activities

(1,259,356)

(42,457,508)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
and cash equivalents

872,423

1,126,559

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

(38,729,063)

66,155,489

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year

125,697,089

59,541,600

86,968,026

125,697,089

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF THE YEAR
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The accompanying notes from 1 to 45 are an integral part of these ﬁnancial statements and should be read with them.
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan) was established as a public shareholding company on January 21, 1990 in
accordance with the companies law act no (1) of (1989). Its registered ofﬁce is at Amman; Jordan.
The Bank provides its banking services through its main branch located in Amman and through its 15 branches
in Jordan and its subsidiary (Arab Co-operation for Financial Investments Co.).
The Bank shares are listed and traded in Amman Stock Exchange.
The ﬁnancial statements were authorized for issue by the Bank’s Board of Directors in their meeting no. (1) held
on (February 15,2009). These ﬁnancial statements require the General Assembly’s approval.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The signiﬁcant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the ﬁnancial statements are set out below:

Basis of preparation
The accompanying consolidated ﬁnancial statements of the Bank and its subsidiary have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and its interpretations (IFRICs), and in
conformity with the applicable laws and regulations of the Central Bank of Jordan.
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis, except for ﬁnancial assets held
for trading, available-for-sale investments, derivative ﬁnancial instruments and ﬁnancial assets and ﬁnancial
liabilities held at fair value through proﬁt or loss, that have been measured at fair value.
The ﬁnancial statements have been presented in Jordanian Dinars (JD) which is the functional currency of the
Bank.

Changes in accounting policies:
The Bank’s accounting policies are consistent with those used in the previous year.
Summary of signiﬁcant accounting policies:

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements comprise the ﬁnancial statements of the Bank and its Subsidiary for which
the Bank has the power to govern the ﬁnancial and operating policies. All intra-company balances, transactions,
income and expenses and proﬁts and losses resulting from intra-company transactions that are recognised in
assets or liabilities, are eliminated in full.
There is one Subsidiary which is Arab Co-operation for Financial Investments Co. Ltd. established on January
25, 1990. The Bank owned 100% of paid in capital amounted to JD 15,600,000 as of December 31, 2008. The
Company’s main activities include asset management and brokerage in securities on behalf of its clients at
Amman Stock Exchange and abroad in addition to offering ﬁnancial consulting in connection with securities.
The ﬁnancial statements of the subsidiary are prepared for the same reporting year as the Bank, using
consistent accounting policies.
If separate ﬁnancial statements as described in IAS 27 are prepared for the Bank, the investment in Subsidiary
will be shown at cost in the balance sheet.
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Segmental reporting
Business segments represent distinguishable components of the Bank that are engaged in providing products or
services which are subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.
Geographical segments are associated to products and services provided within a particular economic
environment, which are subject to risks and rewards that are in different from those of other economic
environments.

Financial assets held for trading
Financial assets held for trading are those purchased with the intent to be resold in the near future to generate
gains as a result of changes in market prices of such investments.
They are initially recognised at the fair value of consideration given and subsequently remeasured at fair value.
All realised and unrealised gains or losses are transferred to the income statement, including any gains or losses
resulting from the translation of such assets held in foreign currencies.
Interest earned is included in interest income and dividends received are included in gains (losses) from
ﬁnancial assets and liabilities held for trading.

Direct credit facilities
Credit facilities are initially recognised at the fair value of consideration given and subsequently measured at
amortised cost after allowance for credit losses and interest and commission in suspense.
Impairment of direct credit facilities is recognised in the allowance for credit losses when events occur after the
initial recognition of the facility that have an impact on the estimated future cash ﬂows of the facilities that can
be reliably estimated. The impairment is recorded in the income statement.
Interest and commission arising on non-performing facilities is suspended when loans become impaired
according to the Central Bank of Jordan’s regulations.
Loans and the related allowance for credit losses are written off when collection procedures become ineffective.
The excess in the allowance of possible loan losses, if any, is transferred to the statement of income, and cash
recoveries of loans that were previously written off are credited to the income statement.

Financial assets available for sale
Available-for-sale ﬁnancial investments are those which are designated as such or do not qualify to be classiﬁed
as designated at fair value through proﬁt or loss, held-to-maturity or loans and advances.
After initial measurement, available-for-sale ﬁnancial investments are measured at fair value. Unrealised gains
and losses are recognised directly in equity as ‘Cumulative change in fair value reserve’. When the security is
disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is recognised in the income statement.
The losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognised in the income statement and removed
from the cumulative change in fair value reserve. Reversal of impairment on equity instruments is reﬂected
in the cumulative change in fair value, while reversal of impairment on debt instruments is transferred to the
income statement.
Gains or losses on debt instruments resulting foreign exchange rate changes are transferred to the income
statement. On equity instruments, such gains and losses are transferred to the cumulative change in fair value.
Interest earned on available-for-sale ﬁnancial investments is reported as interest income using the effective
interest method.
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Financial assets held to maturity
Held-to-maturity ﬁnancial investments are those which carry ﬁxed or determinable payments and have ﬁxed
maturities and which the Bank has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Held to maturity investments are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of consideration given including
directly attributable transaction costs. After initial measurement, held-to-maturity ﬁnancial investments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate.

Fair value
For investments and derivatives quoted in an active market, fair value is determined by reference to quoted
market prices. Bid prices are used for assets and offer prices are used for liabilities.
For ﬁnancial instruments where there is no active market fair value is normally based on one of the following
methods:
-

Comparison with the current market value of a highly similar ﬁnancial instrument.
The expected cash ﬂows discounted at current rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk
characteristics.
Option pricing models.

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, which includes non-interest bearing deposits, is
the amount payable on demand.
Where the fair value of an investment cannot be reliably measured, it is stated at the fair value of consideration
given or amortised cost and any impairment in the value is recorded in the income statement.

Impairment of ﬁnancial assets
The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a ﬁnancial asset or
a group of ﬁnancial assets is impaired. If such evidence exists, the recoverable amount is estimated in order to
determine the amount of impairment loss to be recognised in the income statement.
Impairment is determined as follows:
-

For assets carried at amortised cost, impairment is based on the difference between the carrying value and
the estimated cash ﬂows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
For assets carried at fair value, impairment is the difference between the fair value of consideration given
and the fair value.
For assets carried at cost, impairment is based on the difference between the fair value of consideration
given and the present value of future cash ﬂows discounted at the current market rate of return from a
similar ﬁnancial asset.

Impairment is recognised in the income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases, the carrying value of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. The amount of the reversal
is recognised in the income statement except for equity instruments classiﬁed as available for sale investments
for which the reversal is recognized in the statement of equity.

Property and equipment
Property and equipment is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
in value. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of property and
equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives. Land is not depreciated. Depreciation rates
used are as follows:
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%
Buildings
Equipment and furniture
Vehicles
Computers
Others

2-15
9-20
15
9-25
10

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where
the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets are written down to their recoverable
amount, and the impairment is recorded in the income statement.
An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic beneﬁts are
expected from its use or disposal.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) arising from a past
event and the costs to settle the obligation are both probable and able to be reliably measured.

Employee end of service indemnity
Provision for end of service indemnity is established by the Bank to face any legal or contractual obligation at the
end of employees’ services and is calculated based on the service terms as of the ﬁnancial statements date.

Income Tax
Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred taxes.
Current tax is based on taxable proﬁts, which may differ from accounting proﬁts published in the income
statement. Accounting proﬁts may include non-taxable proﬁts or tax deductible expenses which may be
exempted in the current or subsequent ﬁnancial years.
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for ﬁnancial reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date.
The carrying values of deferred income tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufﬁcient taxable proﬁt will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Fiduciary assets
Assets held in a ﬁduciary capacity are not recognised as assets of the Bank. Fees and commissions received for
administering such assets are recognised in the income statement. A provision is recognised for decreases in the
fair value of guaranteed ﬁduciary assets below their original principal amount.

Offsetting
Financial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities are only offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the Bank intends to either settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Revenue and expense recognition
Interest income is recorded using the effective interest method except for fees and interest on non performing
facilities, on which interest is transferred to the interest in suspense account and not recognised in the income
statement.
Expenses are recognised on an accrual basis.
Commission income is recognised upon the rendering of services. Dividend income is recognised when the right
to receive payment is established.

Trade date accounting
Purchases and sales of ﬁnancial assets are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the Bank commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

Fair value hedges
A fair value hedge is a hedge of the exposure to changes in the fair value of the Bank’s recognised assets or
liabilities that is attributable to a particular risk.
For designated and qualifying fair value hedges, the change in the fair value of a hedging derivative is recognised
in the income statement. The change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is
recorded as adjustment to the carrying value of the hedged item and is also recognised in the income statement.

Cash ﬂow hedges
A cash ﬂow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in the Bank’s actual and expected cash ﬂows which is
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability.
For designated and qualifying cash ﬂow hedges, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is initially recognised directly in equity, and is subsequently transferred to the income statement in
the period in which the hedged cash ﬂows affect income, or at such time as the hedge becomes ineffective.
The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

Hedge of net investments in foreign operations
Hedges of net investments in a foreign operation are accounted for by measuring the fair value of the hedging
instrument. The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is initially recognised directly in
equity, while the ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised immediately in
the income statement. On disposal of the foreign operation, the cumulative value of any such gains or losses
recognised directly in equity is transferred to the income statement.
For hedges which become ineffective, gains or losses resulting from the change in fair value of the hedge
instrument is recognised directly in the income statement.

Derivative ﬁnancial instruments held for trading
Derivative ﬁnancial instruments such as foreign currency forward and future deals, interest rate forward and
future deals, swaps, foreign currency options and others, are initially recorded at cost as other assets / liabilities,
and subsequently carried at fair value in the balance sheet. Fair value is determined by reference to current
market prices. In case such prices were not available, the method of valuation is stated. Changes in fair value are
transferred to the income statement.

Repurchase and resale agreements
Assets sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a speciﬁed future date (repos) will continue to be
recognised in the Bank’s ﬁnancial statements due to the Bank’s continuing exposure to the risks and rewards of
these assets, using the same accounting policies.
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The proceeds of the sale are recorded under loans and borrowings. The difference between the sale and the
repurchase price is recognised as an interest expense over the agreement term using the effective interest
method.
Assets purchased with a corresponding commitment to resell at a speciﬁed future date (reverse repos) are not
recognised in the Bank’s ﬁnancial statements as assets since the Bank is not able to control these assets. The
related payments are recognised as part of deposits at banks and ﬁnancial institutions or direct credit facilities as
applicable, and the difference between purchase and resale price is recognised in the income statement over the
agreement term using the effective interest method.

Assets obtained by the Bank
Assets obtained by the Bank through calling upon collateral are shown in the balance sheet under “Other assets”
at the lower of their carrying value or fair value. Assets are revalued at the balance sheet date on an individual
basis and losses from impairment are transferred directly to the income statement, while revaluation gains are
not recognised as income. Reversal of previous impairment losses shall not result in a carrying value that exceeds
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired through business combination are recorded at their fair value on that date. Other
intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Intangible assets with ﬁnite lives are amortised over the useful economic life, while intangible assets with
indeﬁnite useful lives are assessed for impairment at each reporting date or when there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired.
Internally generated intangible assets are not capitalised and are expensed in the income statement.
Indications of impairment of intangible assets are reviewed for and their useful economic lives are reassessed at
each reporting date. Adjustments are reﬂected in the current and subsequent periods.
Intangible assets include computer software and programs. These intangibles are amortized over their estimated
useful lives with rates ranging between 10% to 20% annually.

Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency at the rate of exchange ruling at
the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into respective functional currencies at rates of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date as issued by Central Bank of Jordan. Any gains or losses are taken
to the income statement.
Translation gains or losses on non-monetary items carried at fair value (such as stocks) through equity are
included in equity as part of the cumulative changes in fair value. For non-monetary items carried at fair value
through proﬁt and loss, such gains and losses are taken to the income statement.
As at the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries and overseas branches are translated
into the Bank’s presentation currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date, and their income
statements are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising on
translation are taken directly to a separate component of equity. On disposal of an entity, the deferred cumulative
amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is transferred to the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand and cash balances with banks and ﬁnancial institutions that
mature within three months, less banks and ﬁnancial institutions deposits that mature within three months and
restricted balances.
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3. USE OF ESTIMATES
The preparation of the ﬁnancial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of ﬁnancial assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities. These
estimates and assumptions also affect the revenues and expenses and the resultant provisions as well as fair
value changes reported in equity. In particular, considerable judgment by management is required in the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash ﬂows when determining the level of provisions required
for non-performing credit facilities. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about several factors
involving varying degrees of judgment and uncertainty and actual results may differ resulting in future changes
in such provisions.
a.

Provision for credit losses: The Bank reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment based on Central Bank
of Jordan instructions and International Financial Reporting Standards.

b.

Impairment losses on collaterals acquired by the Bank are determined based on appraisal reports prepared
by certiﬁed appraisers. Provisions are recognised when impairment is determined at the ﬁnancial
statements date individually and any impairment is recorded in the income statement. Valuation is
performed on a regular basis.

c.

Income tax is calculated based on the tax rates and laws that are applicable at the balance sheet date.

d.

A periodic review is performed on assets’ estimated useful lives and assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may not be recoverable.

e.

Provision against lawsuits is provided for based on the Bank’s legal advisor opinion.

4. CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

Cash on hand

2008
JD

2007
JD

6,394,723

6,105,116

5,080,484
2,500,000
30,516,796
22,599,183

24,585,833
16,299,612

67,091,186

46,990,561

Balances at Central BanksCurrent accounts
Time and term deposits
Statutory cash reserve
Certiﬁcates of deposits*

TOTAL

*This item includes balances maturing within three to six months amounting to JD 3,999,125
as of 31 December 2008 (2007: JD 4,999,775).
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5. BALANCES AT BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Local Banks an
Financial Institutions

Foreign Banks and
Financial Institutions
2008
JD

2007
JD

Total

2008
JD

2007
JD

2008
JD

2007
JD

Current and demand deposits
Deposits maturing within 3 months

2,321,061
2,995,455

373,540
5,256,639

4,574,395
9,823,176
89,610,046 143,410,071

6,895,456
92,605,501

10,196,716
148,666,710

TOTAL

5,316,516

5,630,179

94,184,441 153,233,247

99,500,957

158,863,426

Non interest bearing balances at banks and ﬁnancial institutions amounted to JD 3,542,804 as of 31 December
2008 (2007: JD 7,367,516).
No cash balances were restricted as of December 2008 and 2007 respectively.

6. DEPOSITS AT BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Term deposits maturing between 3 month – 6 month
Term deposits maturing between 6 month – 9 month
Term deposits maturing after more than one year

Foreign Banks and
Financial Institutions
2008
2007
JD
JD
3,545,000
618,370
1,063,500
1,169,850

TOTAL

5,226,870

1,169,850

2008
JD

2007
JD

Quoted securities
Other

2,862

353,967
5,199

TOTAL

2,862

359,166

7. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING
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8. DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES
2008
JD

2007
JD

17,199,811
53,475,652
6,403,788
53,676,670

24,269,824
43,795,770
5,736,862
47,871,533

Overdrafts*
Loans and bills **

42,800,736
83,869,292

44,683,877
87,712,633

Lending to governmental sectors **

23,082,273

27,062,782

280,508,222

281,133,281

Consumer lending
Overdrafts *
Loans and bills **
Credit cards

Residential mortgages
Corporate lending

TOTAL
Less: Suspended interest
Less: Provision for impairment losses

DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES, NET

(5,917,659)
(7,330,590)
267,259,973

(7,537,606)
(6,487,653)
267,108,022

*Net of interest and commissions received in advance of JD 42,026 as of December 2008 (2007: JD 49,151).
**Net of interest and commissions received in advance of JD 1,253,205 as of December 2008 (2007: JD 993,196)
At 31 December 2008, non-performing credit facilities amounted to JD 11,194,996 (2007: JD 10,822,097),
representing 3.99% (2007: 3.85%) of gross facilities granted.
At 31 December 2008, non-performing credit facilities; net of suspended interest, amounted to JD 6,587,077
(2007: JD 5,318,090), representing 2.4% (2007: 1.93 %) of gross facilities granted after excluding the suspended
interest.
At 31 December 2008, credit facilities granted to the Government of Jordan amounted to JD 17,785,969 (2007:
JD 20,971,193), representing 6.34% (2007: 7.46%) of gross facilities granted.
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Provision for impairment losses:
The movement of the provision for impairment losses for direct credit facilities is as follows:

2008Consumer
JD

Residential
mortgages
JD

Corporate
JD

Total
JD

At 1 January 2008
Charge (surplus) for the year
Amounts written off

2,694,031
1,237,460
(3,757)

97,400
(14)
-

3,696,222
6,378
(397,130)

6,487,653
1,243,824
(400,887)

At 31 December 2008

3,927,734

97,386

3,305,470

7,330,590

Individual impairment
Collective impairment

1,850,630
2,077,104

97,386
-

2,804,635
500,835

4,752,651
2,577,939

At 31 December 2008

3,927,734

97,386

3,305,470

7,330,590

Consumer
JD

Residential
mortgages
JD

Corporate
JD

Total
JD

At 1 January 2007
Charge (surplus) for the year
Amounts written off

2,292,605
413,523
(12,097)

66,353
31,047
-

4,161,175
(464,921
(32)

6,520,133
(20,351)
(12,129)

At 31 December 2007

2,694,031

97,400

3,696,222

6,487,653

Individual impairment
Collective impairment

1,202,725
1,491,306

97,400
-

3,082,290
613,932

4,382,415
2,105,238

At 31 December 2007

2,694,031

97,400

3,696,222

6,487,653

2007 -

Non-performing credit facilities that were settled or collected amounted to 700,151 during 31 December 2008
(2007: JD 2,092,086).
A reconciliation of suspended interest on direct credit facilities by class is as follows:

2008-

Residential
mortgages
JD

Corporate
JD

Total
JD

860,871
439,409

83,486
23,799

6,593,249
555,964

7,537,606
1,019,172

(55,792)
(229,126)

(19,165)
-

(944,857)
(1,390,179)

(1,019,814)
(1,619,305)

Consumer
JD
At 1 January 2008
Add: Suspended interest during the year
Less: Amount transferred to income on
recovery
Less: Amounts written off
At 31 December 2008

1,015,362

88,120

4,814,177

5,917,659

2007 -

Consumer
JD

Residential
mortgages
JD

Corporate
JD

Total
JD

829,016
187,788

36,795
46,691

6,594,069
803,577

7,459,880
1,038,056

(124,493)
(31,440)

-

860,871

83,486

At 1 January 2007
Add: Suspended interest during the year
Less: Amount transferred to income on
recovery
Less: Amounts written off
At 31 December 2007

(756,805)
(47,592)
6,593,249

(881,298)
(79,032)
7,537,606
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9. FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE
2008
JD

2007
JD

9,000,000
7,302,820

8,306,050
3,048,700
6,326,680

16,302,820

17,681,430

34,201,070
65,901,950
300,000
8,000,000
3,004,389

13,128,778
54,202,349
13,000,000
8,006,036

Total unquoted investments

111,407,409

88,337,163

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE

127,710,229

106,018,593

Fixed rate
Floating rate

117,403,020
-

88,637,177
3,048,700

TOTAL

117,403,020

91,685,877

Quoted Investments
Corporate debt securities
Other debt securities
Equities

TOTAL QUOTED INVESTMENTS
Unquoted Investments
Treasury bills
Government debt securities
Corporate debt securities
Other debt securities
Equities

Analysis of debt instruments

Included in unquoted equities are investments carried at cost with value of JD 177,357 as of 31 December 2008
(2007: JD 5,179,004). The investments were stated at cost since the fair value could not be measured reliably
and there is no indication of impairment in the values as of the balance sheet date.
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10. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

2008Cost:
At 1 January 2008
Additions
Disposals
At 31 December 2008
Depreciation and impairment:
At 1 January 2008
Depreciation charge during the year
Disposals
At 31 December 2008

Land
JD

Buildings
JD

Furniture &
Fixtures Vehicles
JD
JD

3,013,869 6,305,865 2,941,809 499,657
53,534
284,598 37,000
(2,492) (279,265) (126,818)
3,011,377 6,080,134 3,099,589 536,657

-

Leasehold
Computers improvements
JD
JD

Total
JD

2,174,027
359,640
2,533,667

2,243,800
315,109
2,558,909

17,179,027
1,049,881
(408,575)
17,820,333

1,937,508
109,547
2,047,055

1,822,517 251,535
316,286 51,926
(115,274)
2,023,529 303,461

1,556,761
320,065
1,876,826

926,747
191,291
1,118,038

6,495,068
989,115
(115,274)
7,368,909

3,011,377 4,033,079
Net book value of property and equipment
2,492
Advance payments on property and equipment

1,076,060 233,196
17,862
-

656,841
59,943

1,440,871
16,078

10,451,424
96,375

NET BOOK VALUE OF PROPERTY AND
EQUIPMENT AT 31 DECEMBER 2008

1,093,922 233,196

716,784

1,456,949

10,547,799

3,011,377 4,035,571

2007Cost:
At 1 January 2007
Additions
Disposals
At 31 December 2007
Depreciation and impairment:
At 1 January 2007
Depreciation charge during the year
Disposals
At 31 December 2007

1,514,935 7,105,900 2,436,171 474,197
2,419,634
328,561
542,921 66,410
(920,700) (1,128,596)
(37,283) ( 40,950)
3,013,869 6,305,865 2,941,809 499,657

-

1, 841,079 1,586,035 240,912
116,221
260,039 52,237
(19,792)
(23,557) (41,614)
1,937,508 1,822,517 251,535

2,055,321
401,734
(283,028)
2,174,027

1,331,978
312,593
(87,810)
1,556,761

1,938,111 15,524,635
389,016
4,148,276
(83,327) (2,493,884)
2,243,800 17,179,027

841,583
147,002
(61,838)
926,747

5,841,587
888,092
(234,611)
6,495,068

3,013,869 4,368,357
Net book value of property and equipment
Advance payments on property and equipment

1,119,292 248,122
14,937
-

617,266
36,030

1,317,053
165,863

10,683,959
216,830

NET BOOK VALUE OF PROPERTY AND
EQUIPMENT AT 31 DECEMBER 2007

1,134,229 248,122

653,296

1,482,916

10,900,789

3,013,869 4,368,357

Fully depreciated property and equipment amounted to JD 5,413,950 as of December 31, 2008 (2007: JD
4,979,252).
During year 2007, the Bank re-estimated the depreciation rate for some property and equipment items. The
ﬁnancial effect for these adjustment did not exceed JD 150,000.
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11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Computer Software and
key money
2008
2007
JD
JD
At 1 January,
Additions
Amortisation during the year

924,447
230,839
(279,013)

1,090,086
139,876
(305,515)

876,273

924,447

2008
JD

2007
JD

Accrued interest and revenue
Cheques under collection
Prepaid expenses
Collateral pending sale
Customers debit balances in subsidiary company
Other

2,950,974
627
361,873
931,682
2,343,526
1,742,635

2,362,701
81,543
330,142
1,889,903
2,783,633
1,340,356

TOTAL

8,331,317

8,788,278

AT 31 DECEMBER
12. OTHER ASSETS

A reconciliation of assets obtained by the Bank by calling on collateral during the year is as follows:
2008
JD
At 1 January
Additions
Retirements

AT 31 DECEMBER

2007
JD

1,889,903
(958,221)

1,410,368
956,687
(477,152)

931,682

1,889,903

13. BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS DEPOSITS
2008

Inside Jordan
JD

Outside
Jordan
JD

2007

Total
JD

Inside Jordan
JD

Outside
Jordan
JD

Total
JD

Current and demand deposits
890,356 9,907,191 10,797,547
Time deposits
13,126,245 51,701,200 64,827,445

6,395,370 25,634,993 32,030,363
15,352,608 27,774,152 43,126,760

AT 31 DECEMBER

21,747,978 53,409,145 75,157,123
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14. CUSTOMERS’ DEPOSITS
2008
Current and demand deposits
Saving accounts
Time and notice deposits

Consumer
JD
35,975,213
9,702,489
121,973,177

Corporate
JD
28,033,164
1,038,728
101,358,628

Governmental
sectors
JD
2,589,199
175,344
33,215,884

Total
JD
66,597,576
10,916,561
256,547,689

TOTAL

167,650,879

130,430,520

35,980,427

334,061,826

Current and demand deposits
Saving accounts
Time and notice deposits

Consumer
JD
36,427,837
9,549,320
114,346,865

Corporate
JD
32,245,602
1,188,844
140,567,016

Governmental
sectors
JD
2,532,261
458,183
30,318,121

Total
JD
71,205,700
11,196,347
285,232,002

TOTAL

160,324,022

174,001,462

33,308,565

367,634,049

2007

-

Governmental institutions’ deposits amounted to JD 35,980,427 as of 31 December 2008 (2007: JD
33,308,565) representing 10,77% (2007: 9,06 %) of total customers’ deposits.

-

Non-interest bearing deposits amounted to JD 58,582,202 as of 31 December 2008 (2007: 62,644,485)
representing 17,54% (2007: 17,04 %) of total deposits.

-

Restricted deposits amounted to JD 2,770,660 as of 31 December 2008 (2007: JD 3,113,434) representing
0,83% (2007: 0,85 %).

-

Dormant accounts amounted to JD 2,735,316 as of 31 December 2008(2007: 2,780,900).

15. MARGIN ACCOUNTS
2008
JD

2007
JD

Margins on direct credit facilities
Margins on indirect credit facilities
Deposits against cash margin dealings’ facilities
Others

28,125,111
25,176,262
739,877
1,981,499

23,664,452
12,705,221
1,793,465
828,493

TOTAL

56,022,749

38,991,631
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16. LOANS AND BORROWINGS
2008Real
Estate
Mortgage
Reﬁnance Company

Total no.
Outstanding
Amount of payments payments
JD
445
253
13,741,484

Payable
every

Collaterals Interest rate

variable

Mortgage
deeds

8.332%

variable

Mortgage
deeds

7.858%

13,741,484

2007Real
Estate
Mortgage
Reﬁnance Company

14,993,845

444

290

14,993,845

At December 31, 2008, borrowed funds which were re-lent to customers amounted to JD 13,741,484
(2007:14,993,845) at an average interest rate of 10.1% (2007:9.28%).

17. SUNDRY PROVISIONS
2008

Utilised
during the Returned to Balance at
Income December 31
year
JD
JD
JD

Balance at
January 1
JD

Provided
during the
period
JD

End of service indemnity
Lawsuit provision and contingent liabilities
Others

80,000
165,500
207,228

893,119
-

(61,076)
-

(90,500)
-

18,924
968,119
207,228

TOTAL

452,728

893,119

(61,076)

(90,500)

1,194,271

Balance at
January 1
JD

Provided
during the
period
JD

End of service indemnity
Lawsuit provision and contingent liabilities
Others

15,500
107,228

80,000
150,000
100,000

-

-

80,000
165,500
207,228

TOTAL

122,728

330,000

-

-

452,728

2007
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18. INCOME TAX
Income tax liabilities
The movements on the income tax liability were as follows:
2008
JD
At January 1
Income tax paid
Income tax charge for the year

AT DECEMBER 31

2007
JD

5,408,145
(4,505,753)
5,050,485

4,965,214
(4,203,910)
4,646,841

5,952,877

5,408,145

2008
JD

2007
JD

5,050,485
17,564

4,646,841
10,431

5,068,049

4,657,272

Income tax appearing in the statement of income represents the following:

Current income tax charge
Reversal of deferred tax assets

The Bank reached a ﬁnal settlement with the Income Tax Department for the year ended December 31, 2006.
The Income Tax Department reviewed the Bank’s records for year 2007 and did not reach a ﬁnal settlement yet.
The Subsidiary reached a ﬁnal settlement with the Income Tax Department for the year ended December 31,
2006.
The Income Tax Department did not review the Subsidiary’s records for year 2007 till the date of ﬁnancial
statements.

Deferred tax assets / liabilities:
Movement in temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows:
2008

a.
b.

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

Amounts
Additions
released
Balance at during the during the Balance at
December 31
year
year
January 1
JD
JD
JD
JD
(50,184) 1,309,144 1,421,589
162,629
1,636,325 (1,636,325)

2007

Deferred
Tax
JD
458,762
-

Deferred Tax
JD
56,920
365,017
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Deferred tax liabilities are resulting from gains/losses from the revaluation of ﬁnancial assets available for sale
which are included in the cumulative change in fair value in equity.
The movement on deferred assets/ liabilities account is as follows:
2008
Assets
JD

2007

Liabilities
JD

At 1 January
Additions
Released

56,920 365,017
419,406
(17,564) (365,017)

AT 31 DECEMBER

458,762

-

Assets
JD

Liabilities
JD

67,351
365,017
(10,431)
56,920 365,017

A reconciliation between taxable proﬁt and the accounting proﬁt is as follows:
2008
JD

2007
JD

Accounting proﬁt
Non-taxable proﬁt
Expenses not deductible
Prior year adjustments

14,987,932
(4,714,550)
3,129,554
-

15,215,240
(4,227,477)
816,837
(229,902)

TAXABLE PROFIT

13,402,936

11,574,698

Effective rate of income tax

33,81%

30,61%

The statutory tax rate on Banks in Jordan is 35% and the statutory tax rate on subsidiaries is 25%.

19. OTHER LIABILITIES

Accrued interest expenses
Credit balances
Accrued expenses
Negative fair value of derivatives (Note 35)
Certiﬁed checks
Universities fees
Scientiﬁc research and vocational training
Technical, vocational education and training support fund fees
Board of directors remuneration
Incoming transfers
Others

TOTAL
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2008
JD

2007
JD

1,907,335
8,661,698
1,633,742
921,700
1,130,506
92,058
92,058
85,141
74,167
41,694
664,326

1,345,488
14,329,936
1,547,422
246,599
1,719,914
115,342
80,818
91,786
78,167
330,517
946,758

15,304,425

20,832,747
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20. PAID IN CAPITAL
Paid in capital
The authorized and paid in capital amounted to JD 64,471,875 divided in to 64,471,875 shares at a par value of
JD 1 per share (2007: JD 56,062,500).

Distributed stock dividends
The Board of Directors approved in its meeting held on February 17, 2008, the increase in capital by JD 8,409,375
by distributing stock dividends representing 15% of the authorized and issued capital.

Proposed stock dividends
The Board of Directors approved in its meeting held on February 15, 2009, the increase in capital by JD 6,447,188
representing 10% of the authorized and issued capital.
This increase was distributed as stock dividends.

21. RESERVES
Statutory Reserve
As required by the Law, 10% of the proﬁt before tax and fees is transferred to the statutory reserve. The Bank
may resolve to discontinue such annual transfers when the reserve equals the paid in capital. This reserve is not
available for distribution to shareholders.

Voluntary Reserve
The balance represents 20% of the proﬁt before tax and fees transferred to the voluntary reserve during current
and previous years. The reserve shall be used at the discretion of the Board of Directors, and it is distributable to
shareholders in part or in full.

General banking risk reserve
This reserve is appropriated from retained earnings in compliance with the regulations of the Central Bank of
Jordan.
The use of the following reserves is restricted by law:
Description
Statutory reserve
General banking risk reserve

Amount
10,060,876
2,774,240

Restriction Law
Banking Law
Central Bank of Jordan
regulations
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22. CUMULATIVE CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE
Financial assets available for sale

2008Balance at January 1,
Unrealised gains (losses)
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets
(Proﬁt) loss transferred
statement

to

Stocks
JD

Bonds
JD

Hedge
derivatives
JD

Total
JD

1,646,467
(2,525,832)
586,031
(341,282)

(218,470)
(1,215,401)
(136,643)
438,093

(156,689)
(680,640)
(84,371)
322,595

1,271,308
(4,421,873)
365,017
419,406

-

1,476,404

income

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31,

1,574,817

(98,413)

940,201

(1,230,834)

(599,105)

(889,738)

Financial assets available for sale

Stocks
JD

2007Balance at January 1,
Unrealised gains (losses)
Deferred tax liabilities
(Proﬁt) loss transferred
statement

to

Bonds
JD

Hedge
derivatives
JD

Total
JD
35,978
1,502,032
(365,017)

759,021
1,322,312
(586,031)

(687,593)
369,217
136,643

(35,450)
(189,497)
84,371

151,165

(36,737)

(16,113)

98,315

1,646,467

(218,470)

(156,689)

1,271,308

income

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31,

The cumulative change in fair value is presented net of deferred tax assets of JD 419,406 as of 31 December
2008 against deferred tax liabilities of JD 365,017 as of 31 December 2007.

23. RETAINED EARNINGS (LOSSES)
The retained earnings include an amount of JD 39,356 as of December 31, 2008 (2007:56,920) which represents
deferred tax assets that are not available for distribution in accordance with Central Bank of Jordan regulations.
The Subsidiary (Arab Co-operation for Financial Investments Co.) has adjusted in 2007 its retained earnings with
an amount of JD 229,902 as a result of incorrect recording of Investors Guarantee Fund in 2005 and 2006.
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24. INTEREST INCOME
2008
JD

2007
JD

347,194
4,690,887
1,205,900
4,334,621

539,381
4,023,132
930,533
3,693,416

Overdrafts
Loans and bills

2,990,297
8,010,820

2,765,211
6,698,002

Public and governmental sectors
Balances at the Central Bank
Balances at banks and ﬁnancial institutions
Financial assets available for sale
Financial assets held to maturity
Interest income on interest rate swap contracts
Interest income on margin trading ﬁnancing for
Subsidiary’s customers

2,023,463
1,662,976
3,856,314
7,765,742
406,750

2,261,121
1,590,760
7,855,058
4,712,191
5,457
503,525

4,111,775

3,596,600

41,406,739

39,174,387

2008
JD

2007
JD

2,809,137

6,553,795

Current accounts and deposits
Saving accounts
Time and notice placements
Margin accounts
Loans and borrowings
Deposit guarantee fees
Interest paid on interest rate swap contracts
Others

215,136
213,350
12,516,342
1,329,034
1,199,992
549,802
485,509
98

158,247
262,592
11,385,576
1,092,684
1,283,547
375,132
466,162
8,687

TOTAL

19,318,400

21,586,422

Consumer lending
Overdrafts
Loans and bills
Credit cards

Residential mortgages
Corporate lending

TOTAL
25. INTEREST EXPENSE

Banks and ﬁnancial institution deposits

Customers’ deposits -
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26. NET COMMISSION
2008
JD

2007
JD

Commission income Direct credit facilities
Indirect credit facilities
Less: commission expense

990,151
1,381,631
(15,443)

905,479
1,229,686
(19,046)

TOTAL

2,356,339

2,116,119

2008
JD

2007
JD

Resulting from Trading in foreign currencies

172,798

190,296

Revaluation of foreign currencies

872,423

1,126,559

1,045,221

1,316,855

27. NET GAIN FROM FOREIGN CURRENCIES

TOTAL

28. NET GAIN ARISING FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING
Realised
gain (loss)
JD

Unrealised
gain (loss)
JD

Dividend
income
JD

Total
JD

2008
Equities
Managed funds and other

(68,130)
(332,120)

-

2,239
-

(65,891)
(332,120)

TOTAL

( 400,250)

-

2,239

(398,011)

Equities
Managed funds and other

2,189
202,751

(97,770)
-

12,000
-

(83,581)
202,751

TOTAL

204,940

(97,770)

12,000

119,170

2007

52 ABC Jordan Annual Report 2008

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2008
(All ﬁgures in Jordanian Dinars)

29. NET GAIN FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE
2008
JD

2007
JD

Dividend income
( Loss) Gain from sale of ﬁnancial assets available for sale
Less: impairment losses on investments
Gain from selling interest rate swap agreement

433,376
(127,745)
(1,348,659)
-

337,599
827,643
(942,072)
16,113

TOTAL

(1,043,028)

239,283

2008
JD

2007
JD

Brokerage commission
Visa card income
Management and consulting fees
Transfers commission
Recovery of written off debts
Capital gain
Rent revenue
Returned cheques commission
Others

5,057,795
837,825
59,110
298,904
50,049
(272,159)
26,598
73,940
1,690,125

4,098,258
684,105
76,959
214,114
46,569
1,847,774
26,768
48,050
509,074

TOTAL

7,822,187

7,551,671

2008
JD

2007
JD

Salaries and beneﬁts
Employees’ bonuses
Social security contribution
Medical expenses
Training expenses
Per diem
Others

5,738,445
1,013,683
554,330
198,432
120,209
24,045
388,762

4,774,332
1,060,150
472,314
231,228
41,196
48,335
367,040

TOTAL

8,037,906

6,994,595

30. OTHER INCOME

31. EMPLOYEES’ EXPENSES
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32. OTHER EXPENSES

Duties and Licenses
Computer expenses
Advertising expenses
Travel expenses
Communication
Head ofﬁce expenses – Bahrain
Rent
Board of Directors’ expenses
Printing and stationery
Borrower’s transactions expenses
Consultation expenses
Subscription and magazines
Professional fees
Board of Directors’ remuneration
Jordanian universities fees
Scientiﬁc research and vocational training fees
Technical, vocational education and
training support fund fees
Other expenses

TOTAL

2008
JD

2007
JD

904,709
487,622
801,137
49,028
538,143
106,350
673,104
261,471
228,016
119,765
65,894
8,339
195,743
64,444
63,875
85,915

790,294
371,890
625,136
49,690
478,396
124,075
638,491
320,545
274,791
169,952
94,106
8,816
144,834
70,015
115,335
80,818

81,215
795,868

90,942
769,846

5,530,638

5,217,972

2008
JD

2007
JD

9,919,883
64,471,875

10,557,968
64,471,875

0.154

0.164

33. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Proﬁt for the year
Weighted average number of shares

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Diluted earnings per share equal basic earnings per share as the Bank did not issue any potentially convertible
instrument which would have an impact on earnings per share.
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34. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents appearing in the statement of cash ﬂows consist of the following balance sheet
items:

Cash and balances with Central Banks
Maturing within 3 months
Add: Balances at banks and ﬁnancial institutions
maturing within 3 months
Less: Banks and ﬁnancial institutions’ deposits
maturing within 3 months

TOTAL

2008
JD

2007
JD

63,092,061

41,990,786

99,500,957

158,863,426

(75,624,992)

(75,157,123)

86,968,026

125,697,089

35. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The table below shows the positive and negative fair values of derivative ﬁnancial instruments together with
the notional amounts analyzed by their term to maturity.

Par value maturity
Positive fair Negative fair Total notional Within 3 3 – 12 1 – 3 More than 3
value
value
amount
months months years
years
JD 000
JD 000
JD 000
JD 000 JD 000 JD 000
JD 000

2008Derivatives held for trading
Derivatives held as cash ﬂow hedge: interest rate
swap contract *

2

-

-

922

355
7,799

355

-

-

-

-

-

-

7,799

Par value maturity
Positive fair Negative fair Total notional Within 3 3 – 12 1 – 3 More than 3
value
value
amount
months months years
years
JD 000
JD 000
JD 000
JD 000 JD 000 JD 000
JD 000

2007Derivatives held for trading
Derivatives held as cash ﬂow hedge: interest rate
swap contract*

-

6

3,276

3,276

-

-

-

-

241

7,799

-

-

-

7,799

The notional amounts indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at the year end and are neither indicative
of the market risk nor the credit risk.
*The Bank has entered in interest rate swap contract as hedging instrument against DIJAF bond (which has ﬁxed
interest rate) to hedge any increase in interest rates.
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The accompanying consolidated ﬁnancial statements of the Bank include the following subsidiaries:
Paid in capital
Company name

Ownership

2008
JD

2007
JD

100%

15,600,000

15,600,000

Arab Co-operation for Financial Investments Co.

The Bank entered into transactions with Major Shareholders, Directors, Senior Management and their related
concerns in the ordinary course of business at commercial interest and commission rates. All the loans and
advances to related parties are performing advances and are free of any provision for credit losses.
The following related party transactions took place during the year:
Related Party

Total

Parent and
afﬁliated
companies
JD

Bank’s
employees
JD

Board of
Directors
JD

2008
JD

2007
JD

-

3,084,125

-

3,084,125

2,968,863

50,410,272
-

1,756,566
-

2,165,930
-

50,410,272
3,922,496
-

73,334,064
2,346,891
3,048,700

24,374,679
190,012
7,799,000

-

-

24,374,679
190,012
7,799,000

18,717,266
7,799,000

Balance sheet items:
Direct credit facilities
Deposits at the bank and
institutions
Customer’s deposits
Available for sale investment

ﬁnancial

Off balance sheet items:
Letters of guarantee
Letters of credits
Interest rate swap contract

Income statement items:
Interest and commission income
Interest and commission expense

2,512,149
(669,163)

107,105
(29,985)

-

2,619,254
(699,148)

4,513,413
(495,904)

Compensation of the key management personnel is as follows:
2008
JD
Beneﬁts (Salaries, wages, and bonuses) of Senior
Management

1,409,511

2007
JD
1,002,615

37. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
There are no material differences between the carrying values and fair values of the on and off balance sheet
ﬁnancial instruments.
Included in unquoted equities are investments carried at cost with value of JD 177,357 as of 31 December 2008
(2007: JD 5,179,004). The investments were stated at cost since the fair value could not be measured reliably
and there is no indication of impairment in the values as of the balance sheet date.
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38. RISK MANAGEMENT
The Arab Banking Corporation Bank operates within a conservative frame work towards all types of risks,
employing a number of advanced policies to control and maintain such risks at low levels without compromising
proﬁtability. Risk Management practices at the Bank are characterized by their conservativeness, taking into
consideration the continual development resulting from compliance with various banking laws and regulations.
The banking risk management bodies at the Bank include the Bank’s Board of Directors, the Executive Chairman,
in addition to a number of committees, including the Steering Committee, Assets and Liabilities Committees,
as well as the Credit Risk Committee which comprises a number of the Bank’s Board members, a member of
the Credit Department at the Parent Corporation in Bahrain, the Bank’s Executive Chairman, Head of the Credit
Department, and a specialized and independent Risk Management Department.
The following represents the main banking risks which the Bank is exposed to and the ways in which they are
managed.

38/A. CREDIT RISKS
Credit risks are the risks arising from the default or inability of the ﬁnancial instrument’s counterparty to meet
its obligations towards the Bank, leading to losses. The Arab Banking Corporation Bank adopts a policy of
dividing the credit facilities portfolio into four sections. These are: facilities granted to sovereigns and ﬁnancial
institutions; to corporations which in their turn include large, small and medium-sized corporations; retail
facilities, which include personal and housing loans; and other products like credit cards and personal car loans.
Whereas the Bank operates within the Arab Banking Corporation (Bahrain) network, the Parent Corporation
has undertaken reinforcement of credit control through issuing credit policies speciﬁed for each type of the
above facilities’ divisions. Such policies include rules and procedures to be complied with when granting or
renewing facilities. Policies also include speciﬁc assessments for clients according to their credit rating. The Bank
is currently adopting the automatic Moody’s Risk Advisor model to rate facilities granted to large companies,
and the Credit Scoring model to assess the clients listed under small-sized companies and/or retail facilities.
In view of the importance of credit risk, the Credit Department at the Parent Corporation in Bahrain has
developed a special system to calculate the Risk Adjusted Return on Capital (RAROC), which takes into
consideration the facility type’s credit rating and maturity date in pricing credit facilities, in addition to
considering expected losses. The minimum accepted level has been determined as 15%.
Controlling and managing of the credit portfolio for the Arab Banking Corporation is undertaken through a
number of credit committees comprising three higher committees from the Group Board, and a fourth committee
comprising members of the Bank Board in Jordan, and a main facilities committee comprising members of
the Bank’s heads of departments in Jordan, as well as the Executive Chairman. Another sub-committee has
been formed to examine small-sized facilities having a credit limit of less than 100 thousand Jordanian Dinars.
Jurisdictions of each committee have been determined according to the client’s credit rating and the duration of
the granted facilities.
The Bank follows a diversiﬁcation policy in relation to clients, economic sectors and geographical classiﬁcations,
which contributes to minimizing the degree of credit risks. For the purpose of controlling lending risks, the Credit
Risk Committee originated by the Board holds periodic meetings to discuss all issues relating to credit risks.
The Committee is provided with quarterly reports on the allocation of the facilities in respect of the economic
distribution, credit rating, geographic classiﬁcation and facilities’ maturity dates. In addition, the adequacy of
the loan loss provision is reviewed periodically.
Details of the direct credit facilities portfolio are stated in Note 8. The Bank’s off-balance sheet obligations
exposed to credit risks are detailed in Note 42.
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The Bank restricts asset and liability risk concentrations through distributing its activities amongst several
sectors and geographical classiﬁcations inside and outside the Kingdom.
The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet, including
derivatives.
1. The maximum exposure is shown gross, before the effect of mitigation through the use of master netting and
collateral agreements and after impairment provisions.
2008
JD

2007
JD

Cash and balances at Central Banks
Balances at banks and ﬁnancial institutions
Deposits at banks and ﬁnancial institutions
Direct credit facilities

60,696,463
99,500,957
5,226,870

40,885,445
158,863,426
1,169,850

Consumer lending
Residential mortgages

72,136,155
53,491,164

70,247,554
47,690,647

Corporate lending:
Lending to governmental sectors

118,550,381
23,082,273

122,107,039
27,062,782

Bonds and treasury bills:
Within ﬁnancial assets available for sale

117,403,020

91,685,877

BALANCE SHEET ITEMS:

Other assets

5,771,042

5,227,877

555,858,325

564,940,497

79,793,249
5,059,905
2,316,741
58,135,531

65,051,147
17,783,634
7,566,398
47,523,419

TOTAL

145,305,426

137,924,598

GRAND TOTAL

701,163,751

702,865,095

TOTAL
OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Letters of guarantee
Letters of credit
Acceptances
Irrevocable commitments to extend credit

Collaterals against facilities are as follows:
Real estate mortgage.
Financial instrument such as stocks.
Letter of guarantee.
Cash margins.
Governmental guarantee.
The Management monitors the market value for these collaterals on a periodic basis. In case the value of the
collateral decreases, the Bank requests additional collaterals to cover the value of the deﬁcit. The Bank also
periodically evaluates the collaterals against non-performing credit facilities.
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2. Credit risk exposure analysis by risk rating categories:

Consumer
JD

Residential
mortgages
JD

Corporate
JD

3,496,265
69,222,484

235,066
51,525,179

4,049,449
118,526,874

22,739,584
5,934,697
1,817,340

12,206,578
2,539,782
1,680,417

46,351,745
11,499,973
15,297,342

Non performing:
Substandard
Doubtful
Loss
Total
Less: Suspended interest
Less: provision for impairment losses

244,035
494,138
2,408,171
77,682,433
1,015,362
3,927,734

101,800
128,341
166,239
53,837,042
88,120
97,386

92,583
438,418
1,324,005
1,946,484
6,235,684
8,810,094
145,525,937 187,132,736 104,928,426 569,106,574
4,814,177
5,917,659
3,305,470
7,330,590

NET

72,739,337

53,651,536

137,406,290

Consumer
JD

Residential
mortgages
JD

Corporate
JD

21,966,142
48,628,938

16,861,309
29,451,154

19,695,328
104,484,050

11,849,734
4,527,908
1,470,013

9,511,892
2,668,328
1,356,048

50,409,159
5,326,141
11,961,311

Non performing:
Substandard
Doubtful
Loss
Total
Less: Suspended interest
Less: provision for impairment losses

195,933
368,549
1,686,050
74,315,625
860,871
2,694,031

229,920
47,898,431
83,486
97,400

450,123
646,056
408,066
776,615
7,483,456
9,399,426
144,482,334 149,187,390 163,081,976 578,965,756
6,593,249
7,537,606
3,696,222
6,487,653

NET

70,760,723

47,717,545

134,192,863

2008

Low risk
Acceptable risk
Maturing (*):
Up to 30 days
From 31 to 60 days
Watchlist

2007

Low risk
Acceptable risk
Maturing (*):
Up to 30 days
From 31 to 60 days
Watchlist

Governmental
sectors
JD

Banks &
Financials
JD

Total
JD

181,836,432
189,617,212
5,296,304 104,928,426 349,499,267
-

-

81,297,907
19,974,452
18,795,099

187,132,736 104,928,426 555,858,325

Governmental
sectors
JD

Banks &
Financials
JD

Total
JD

149,187,390
207,710,169
163,081,976 345,646,118
-

-

71,770,785
12,522,377
14,787,372

149,187,390 163,081,976 564,940,497

* The entire balance of credit is deemed matured if one of its payments or interest were due. Overdrafts are
deemed matured if their limits exceeded the ceiling.

Distribution of collaterals measured at fair value over credit facilities
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2008Collaterals
Low risk
Acceptable risk
Watchlist
Non performing:
Substandard
Doubtful
Loss

Consumer
JD

Residential
mortgages
JD

235,066
3,496,264
30,567,416 48,265,977
250,757 1,629,356
225,618

92,400
84,243
122,662

Corporate
JD

Governmental
sectors
JD

Total
JD

4,049,449 17,785,969 25,566,748
53,319,877 5,296,304 137,449,574
9,880,260
8,000,147
21,739
1,042,734
1,294,583

-

114,139
1,126,977
1,642,863

TOTAL

34,540,055 50,429,704 67,728,529

Cash margin
Real estate
Traded equities
Vehicles and machinery

63,272
5,564,447
4,876,572 48,508,250
16,243,220
3,142,912

16,007,440
28,301,775
19,359,807
674,857

-

21,635,159
81,686,597
35,603,027
3,817,769

TOTAL

29,827,151 48,571,522

64,343,879

-

142,742,552

Governmental
sectors
JD

Total

Corporate
JD

5,172,615 8,094,552
31,826,304 33,361,682
105,579 2,141,164

30,440,585
62,921,811
19,309,740

-

43,707,752
128,109,797
21,556,483

129,503

352,202
188,438
790,266

-

352,202
194,357
1,148,191

TOTAL

37,338,839 43,726,901 114,003,042

-

195,068,782

Cash margin
Real estate
Traded equities
Vehicles and machinery

73,933
4,558,231
1,619,505 33,732,969
208,810
22,890,400
4,709,009

11,815,086
40,154,281
14,204,449
515,059

-

16,447,250
75,506,755
37,303,659
5,224,068

TOTAL

33,777,145 34,015,712

66,688,875

-

134,481,732

2007Collaterals
Low risk
Acceptable risk
Watchlist
Non performing:
Substandard
Doubtful
Loss

Consumer
JD

5,919
228,422

Residential
mortgages
JD

23,082,273 175,780,561

JD

Rescheduled Debts:
Rescheduled debts are debts which have been previously classiﬁed as non-performing credit facilities, then excluded
from the non-performing credit facilities as a result of a rescheduling process, and then classiﬁed as watch list. No
facilities has rescheduled as of 31 December 2008, compared to JD 844,769 as of 31 December, 2007.
Restructured Debts:
Restructuring process refers to re-organizing the credit facilities’ standing in respect to adjusting premiums,
extending the life of the credit facilities, postponing some premiums or extending the grace period etc, and
then classifying such facilities as watch list. Reconstructed debts totalled JD 3,614,756 as of 31 December, 2008,
compared to JD 3,848,186 as of 31st December, 2007.
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3. Bonds and treasury bills:
The table below shows the classiﬁcations of bonds and treasury bills and their grading according to external
rating agencies:

Risk Rating Class

BBB+
Non-rated
Governmental

Included in ﬁnancial assets available for sale

External
rating agency

Fitch ratings
-

TOTAL

2008
JD
17,300,000
100,103,020

2007
JD
3,048,700
21,306,050
67,331,127

117,403,020

91,685,877

4. The Bank’s ﬁnancial assets, before taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements can
be analysed by the following geographical regions:

2008

Cash and balances at Central Banks
Balances at banks and ﬁnancial
institutions
Deposits at banks and ﬁnancial
institutions
Direct credit facilities:
Consumer
Residential mortgages
Corporate

Other Middle
Inside Jordan Eastern countries
JD
JD

Europe
JD

Asia *
JD

Africa
JD

Americas
JD

Other
JD

Total
JD

-

-

-

-

-

-

60,696,463

32,723,692

36,794,188

-

1,169,850

512,020

72,136,155
53,491,164
118,550,381

-

23,082,273

-

60,696,463
5,316,516

35,894 10,583 24,610,676

9,408

99,500,957

-

-

3,545,000

-

5,226,870

-

-

-

-

-

72,136,155
53,491,164
118,550,381

-

-

-

-

-

23,082,273

-

-

-

117,403,020
5,771,042

Lending to governmental sectors
Bonds and treasury bills within:
Financial assets available for sale
Other assets

117,403,020
5,164,611

397,088

81,687

TOTAL 2008

455,840,583

34,290,630

37,387,895

TOTAL 2007

407,319,064

49,116,610

79,702,369 563,328

127,656

35,894 10,583 28,283,332
-

9,408 555,858,325

27,836,749 402,377 564,940,497

* Excluding Middle Eastern countries
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5. An industry sector analysis of the Bank’s ﬁnancial assets, before taking into account collateral held or other
credit enhancements, is as follows:
Public and

2008
Cash and balances at Central Banks

Financial

Industrial Commercial Real estate Agriculture Shares

Services Consumer governmental Other

Total

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

60,696,463

-

60,696,463

99,500,957

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

99,500,957

5,226,870

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Balances at banks and financial
institutions
Deposits at banks and financial
-

-

5,226,870

23,082,273

-

267,259,973

100,103,020

-

117,403,020

3,250,980

-

5,771,042

TOTAL 2008

128,837,254 11,648,455 48,935,083 58,746,546 862,008 23,538,714 38,208,299 57,949,230 187,132,736

-

555,858,325

TOTAL 2007

189,309,685 16,284,578 48,005,754 57,132,880 683,063 32,291,985 13,762,177 49,113,706 149,187,390 9,169,279 564,940,497

institutions
Direct credit facilities

13,411,938 11,617,745 48,794,303 58,586,174 859,735 23,538,714 30,024,047 57,345,044

Financial assets available for sale

9,300,000

Other assets

1,397,489

30,710

140,780

160,372

2,273

-

8,000,000

-

184,252

604,186

38/B. MARKET RISK
Market risks arise from ﬂuctuations in interest and exchange rates and stock prices. Market risks are monitored
and managed on more than one level at the Bank, including the Assets and Liabilities Department, Risk
Management Committee comprising a number of the Bank’s Board members, and the Risk Management
Department.
Bank activities exposed to market risks include the Bank’s investments in bonds and equity, foreign currency
exchange, interest rate swap contracts and certiﬁcates of deposit. The Bank utilizes several advanced
instruments and techniques to measure market risks; for example, the Value at Risk (VaR) method has been
adopted in the year 2008, where such value is calculated on a daily basis for Bank portfolios exposed to risks
(interest rate instruments, equity instruments for trading portfolios and foreign exchange positions) using the
Historical Simulation method. This technique relies on several assumptions, most importantly: one-day time
horizon and a 99% conﬁdence level. Outcomes of the VaR are daily compared with the portfolio’s realized and
unrealized proﬁts and losses.
The Bank also calculates the sensitivities of change in interest rates for ﬁnancial instruments the value of which
is subject to the ﬂuctuations in interest rates, through using the Basis Point Value (BPV) method which relies on
calculating estimated losses for a single Basis Point (Dollar Value of a Basis Point “DVO1”) change in the interest
rate on a daily basis.
The Bank also calculates on a daily basis the change in ﬁnancial positions as a result of the change in the
exchange rates with a single basis point DVO1, in relation to the currencies with which the Bank mainly deals.
As for the subsidiary Company, the activities of which include managing clients’ portfolios and ﬁnancing the
clients’ purchases of shares through margin ﬁnancing, the Bank undertakes periodic monitoring of activities
through producing weekly reports containing details on the Company’s activities, managed portfolios, brokerage
commissions and margin ﬁnancing percentage, in addition to insuring that the Company is compliant with the
instructions of regulatory authorities.
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BELOW IS THE MARKET RISK EXPOSURE ACCORDING TO VAR
2008 -

Effect of
Currency risk
JD (000)

Effect on
Equity*
JD (000)

Effect of
overlapping
JD (000)

Total
JD (000)

Average
Higher
Lower

(59 ,35)
(98 ,55)
(24 ,82)

(5,81)
(17,02)
(0,71)

5,50
17,02
1,42

(59 ,66)
(98 ,55)
(24,11)

2007 -

Effect of
Currency risk
JD (000)

Effect on
Equity*
JD (000)

Effect of
overlapping
JD (000)

Total
JD (000)

Average
Higher
Lower

(38,91)
(104,93)
(7,09)

(42,50)
(97,84)
(0,71)

34,25
22,69
(1,42)

(47,16)
(180,08)
(9,22)

*Trading Portfolio

Below is the ﬁnancial instruments sensitivity to changes in interest rates:
-

By instrument type (BPV = DV01)

Financial Instrument

DV01 value
JD (000)

2008
Bonds
Bonds maturity gap
Certiﬁcates of deposits and money market
Interest rate swap / Currency swap

(22,93)
(0,86)
(0,50)
5,60

2007
Bonds
Bonds maturity gap
Certiﬁcates of deposits and money market
Interest rate swap / Currency swap

-

(18,22)
(0,29)
(0,46)
5,99

By currency (BPV = DV01)

Currency

DV01 value
JD (000)

2008
USD
EURO
JOD

(0,81)
(0,11)
(12,40)

2007
USD
EURO
JOD

(1,17)
(0,04)
(8,14)
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Sensitivity of interest rates as of 31 December 2008:

INTEREST RATES RISKS
INTEREST RE-PRICING GAP
Interest rates risks arise from the possible effect of changes in interest rates on the ﬁnancial instrument value.
The Bank is exposed to interest rate risks as a result of the incompatibility or the occurrence of a gap in the
amounts of assets and liabilities according to the different terms, or as a result of reviewing interest rates in a
speciﬁc duration. The Assets and Liabilities Management Committee at the Bank undertakes dealing with the
effects of the total change in interest rates on the Bank’s ﬁnancial standing. In general, the Bank matches the
terms of its ﬁnancial obligations, in addition to dealing with futures contracts or ﬁnancial derivatives for the
purpose of covering counterparty ﬁnancial positions, so as to have limited ﬁnal outcome.
Interest rate sensitivity :

2008Less than

1–3

3–6

6 – 12

1–3

3 or more

Non-interest

1 month

months

months

months

years

years

bearing

Total

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

Assets
Cash and balances at Central Banks

16,099,902

5,000,156

3,999,125

-

-

-

41,992,003

67,091,186

Balances at banks and financial institutions

48,278,603

47,679,550

-

-

-

-

3,542,804

99,500,957

Deposits at banks and financial institutions

-

-

3,545,000

1,063,500

-

-

Financial assets held for trading

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,862

4,546,925

246,221,867

9,993,260

1,659,027

2,682,638

2,156,256

-

267,259,973

10,068,325

4,949,342

27,134,962 20,668,441

Direct credit facilities

618,370

5,226,870
2,862

29,342,750

25,239,200

10,307,209

127,710,229

Property and equipment

-

-

-

-

-

-

10,547,799

10,547,799

Intangible assets

-

-

-

-

-

-

876,273

876,273

Deferred tax assets

-

-

-

-

-

-

458,762

458,762

8,243,011

8,331,317

75,970,723

587,006,228

Financial assets available for sale

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

4,761

9,522

78,998,516

303,860,437

55,655,292

19,969,700

221,722,981

36,319,717

26,385

19,091

28,547

44,698,732 22,964,929

33,117,435

27,395,456

Liabilities
Banks and financial institution deposits
Customers’ deposits
Margin accounts

46,565,662

-

-

Loans and borrowings

62,852

Sundry provisions

-

-

-

Income tax liabilities

-

-

-

Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY GAP

-

-

375,704

-

-

219,800

42,221

-

75,624,992

58,582,202

334,061,826

-

-

9,457,087

56,022,749

1,487,262

2,978,812

-

13,741,484

-

-

-

1,194,271

1,194,271

-

-

-

5,952,877

5,952,877

15,304,425

15,304,425

90,490,862

501,902,624

-

8,188,556

-

-

6,860,235 10,314,670
648,298

-

-

-

56,665,121

15,048,791 10,962,968

1,707,062

(245,008,271) 247,195,316

29,649,941 12,001,961

31,410,373

24,374,423 (14,520,139)

32,872,984 11,677,123

324,006,787

3,021,033

85,103,604

2007Total Assets

137,603,399

260,148,112

37,119,708

48,440,747

73,317,979

601,180,052

Total Liabilities

369,251,715

15,581,445

11,280,317

3,343,677

2,042,281

25,016,162

97,319,688

523,835,285

(231,648,316) 244,566,667

21,592,667

8,333,446

35,077,427

INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY GAP
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CONCENTRATION IN CURRENCY RISK:
2008
Assets
Cash and balances at Central Banks
Balances at banks and ﬁnancial
institutions
Deposits at banks and ﬁnancial
institutions
Financial assets held for trading
Direct credit facilities
Financial assets available for sale
Other assets
Total Assets

British
Pound
JD

Japanese
Yen
JD

Other
JD

Total
JD

US Dollar
JD

Euro
JD

11,807,165

248,069

4,659

41,209,431 51,785,823

3,009,954

15,716

4,714,850
2,862
13,770
8,616,075
6,647,669
(254,683) 2,556,869
72,743,369 54,604,531

512,020
(828,022)
2,698,611

343,829
359,545

24,967,679
10,334,634
18,564,478
161,101
54,027,892

188
2,654,496
57,191
41,168
2,753,043

3,553
3,553

245
238,037
108,545
746,541
1,093,368

29,209,464
75,116,546
25,353,257
4,403,649
134,082,916

576,639

(54,432)

355,992

71,886

(2,511,606)

-

8,169

12,068,062

1,206,280

97,227,204

5,226,870
2,862
8,629,845
6,647,669
1,768,798
(49,195)
1,165,254 131,571,310

Liabilities
Banks and ﬁnancial institution deposits
Customers’ deposits
Margin accounts
Other liabilities
Total Liabilities

4,241,352
61,885,826
6,623,043
3,454,839
76,205,060

NET CONCENTRATION IN THE
BALANCE SHEET

(3,461,691)

NET
CONCENTRATION
BALANCE SHEET

67,485,630 32,125,149

953,211

-

1,084,792

101,648,782

US Dollar
JD

British
Pound
JD

Japanese
Yen
JD

Other
JD

Total
JD

8,149,280
8,049,314

699,962
679,922

5,470,160
4,978,632

201,989,347
215,590,310

259,918

99,966

20,040

491,528

93,517,797 15,732,705

414,401

109,898

1,158,322

OFF

2007
Total Assets
Total Liabilities

162,874,587 24,795,358
177,347,002 24,535,440

NET CONCENTRATION IN THE
(14,472,415)
BALANCE SHEET
NET
CONCENTRATION
BALANCE SHEET

Euro
JD

(13,600,963)

OFF
110,933,123

38/C. LIQUIDITY RISKS
Liquidity risks represent the possibility of the Bank’s inability to provide necessary ﬁnancing to fulﬁl its
obligations as of their maturity dates. To mitigate such risks, the Bank’s Management undertakes diversifying of
ﬁnancing resources, managing assets and liabilities, adjusting their terms and maintaining adequate balance of
cash and any of its equivalents, in addition to exchangeable securities.
The Bank, within its general strategy framework, aims at achieving revenue on its investments through
reviewing monetary liquidity and managing thereof at the Bank to be carried out at different levels including
Treasury Management, Financial Monitoring Department, Risk Management Department, in addition to
the Assets and Liabilities Committee which is specialized in this issue. The monetary liquidity review process
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includes full analysis of the extended maturity of assets and liabilities, where fund resources are analyzed. Such
resources include clients, correspondent banks, subsidiary and allied establishments and the Bank branches in
Jordan.
Contractual maturity dates for the assets are determined based on the remaining period beginning with the
date of balance sheet till the contractual maturity date, without considering the actual maturities reﬂected
through the historical occurrences of holding deposits and liquidity provision.
The Bank ﬁnished preparing a new policy for managing liquidity in 2008, expected to be applied during 2008.
This policy is based on different scenarios reﬂecting the natural circumstances as well as the severer ones.
The policy is grounded on estimating internal and external cash ﬂows, while being amended according to the
different scenarios and the future expectations to the process of employing the Bank’s funds.

The table below summarises the maturity proﬁle of the Bank’s ﬁnancial liabilities at 31 December
based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations:

2008
Less than

1–3

3–6

6 – 12

1–3

More

No ﬁxed

1 month

months

months

months

years

than 3 years

maturity

Total

JD 000

JD 000

JD 000

JD 000

JD 000

JD 000

JD 000

JD 000

-

-

Liabilities
Banks and ﬁnancial institution deposits
Customers’ deposits
Margin accounts

55,800

20,073

-

-

281,430

36,611

6,984

10,687

38,386

6,203

2,137

63

381

8,444

Loans and borrowings
Sundry provisions

-

-

75,873

241

48

-

336,001

6,826

821

2,102

-

56,475

689

1,735

3,723

-

15,035

1,194

-

1,194

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Income tax liabilities

5,953

-

Other liabilities

8,924

1,579

58

TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL ASSETS

390,556

64,847

17,623

18,202

(as expected maturities)

172,878

86,075

67,582

65,138

-

-

5,953

4,743

-

15,304

2,797

11,810

-

505,835

73,198

110,761

11,374

587,006

-

-

2007
Less than

1–3

3–6

6 – 12

1–3

More

No ﬁxed

1 month

months

months

months

years

than 3 years

maturity

Total

JD 000

JD 000

JD 000

JD 000

JD 000

JD 000

JD 000

JD 000

Liabilities
Banks and ﬁnancial institution deposits
Customers’ deposits
Margin accounts

72,454

3,012

-

-

-

-

-

75,466

342,418

12,351

11,315

2,804

-

398

-

369,286

18,438

-

Loans and borrowings
Sundry provisions
Income tax liabilities
Deferred tax liability
Other liabilities

63
3,837
-

1

23

37

27,216

-

45,715

383

196

676

2,482

19,106

-

22,906

-

-

-

-

453

-

453

-

-

1,571

-

-

-

5,408

-

-

-

-

-

35

16,576

535

TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL ASSETS

453,786

16,281

11,512

5,109

(as expected maturities)

224,189

61,223

62,203

54,536
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365

-

365

3,687

-

20,833

2,519

51,225

-

540,432

81,070

106,146

11,813

601,180

-
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The table below summarises the maturities of ﬁnancial derivatives as of the date of the ﬁnancial statements:
a.

Financial assets/liabilities that are settled net:
Less than

2008

1 month

1 – 3 months

3 – 6 months

6 – 12 months

1 – 3 years

3 or more years

Total

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

Derivatives held for hedging
Interest rate swap

-

-

-

-

-

(921,700)

(921,700)

TOTAL

-

-

-

-

-

(921,700)

(921,700)

2007

Less than
1 month

1 – 3 months

3 – 6 months

6 – 12 months

1 – 3 years

3 or more years

Total

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

Derivatives held for hedging
Interest rate swap

-

-

-

-

-

(241,060)

(241,060)

TOTAL

-

-

-

-

-

(241,060)

(241,060)

b.

Financial assets/liabilities that are settled gross:

2008
Derivatives held for trading:

Less than
1 month

1 – 3 months

3 – 6 months

6 – 12 months

1 – 3 years

3 or more years

Total

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

Currency
- Cash outﬂow

353,477

-

-

-

-

-

353,477

- Cash inﬂow

355,487

-

-

-

-

-

355,487

TOTAL CASH OUTFLOW
TOTAL CASH INFLOW

353,477

-

-

-

-

-

353,477

355,487

-

-

-

-

-

355,487

1 month

1 – 3 months

3 – 6 months

6 – 12 months

1 – 3 years

More than 3 years

Total

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

2007
Derivatives held for trading:

Less than

Currency
- Cash outﬂow

3,278,540

-

-

-

-

-

3,278,540

- Cash inﬂow

3,275,580

-

-

-

-

-

3,275,580

TOTAL CASH OUTFLOW
TOTAL CASH INFLOW

3,278,540
3,275,580

-

-

-

-

-

3,278,540
-

3,275,580
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OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
2008

Less than
1 year
JD

1 – 5 years
JD

Total
JD

Letters of credit & Acceptances
Irrevocable commitments to extend credit
Letters of guarantee

6,927,328
58,135,531
71,880,854

449,318
7,912,395

7,376,646
58,135,531
79,793,249

TOTAL

136,943,713

8,361,713

145,305,426

2007

Less than
1 year
JD

1 – 5 years
JD

Total
JD

Letters of credit & Acceptances
Irrevocable commitments to extend credit
Letters of guarantee

25,350,032
47,523,419
54,247,428

10,803,719

25,350,032
47,523,419
65,051,147

127,120,879

10,803,719

137,924,598

TOTAL
OPERATIONAL RISKS

Such risks include the possibility of having losses in the capital or revenues arising from the inadequacy of
internal monitoring procedures, information systems, human factor, or as a result of external events comprising
a tangible effect on the Bank’s operations.
Just like other types of risks the Bank faces, the ABC Bank relies on the construction and various procedures of
risk management guaranteeing the effective and continual management of its operational risks. During 2008,
the Bank ﬁnished identifying a general frame work for operational risk management concerning the following:
-

Setting operational risk management policies and procedures.
Initiating collection of data pertinent to losses arising from operational risks according to the above
deﬁnition.
Deﬁning and collecting data on Key Risk Indicators.

The Bank is currently in the process of applying a special automated system to remedy operational risks’
losses and indicators along with the Bank’s internal environment in relation to the effectiveness of the internal
monitoring system and Risk and Control Self Assessment.
In addition, the Bank has ﬁnished setting Business Continuity Plans for all its departments and the subsidiary
Company. In 2008, the Bank will carry out periodic inspections to ensure the success and effectiveness of such
plans in guaranteeing business continuity opportunities in emergencies or outcomes of external events.

39. SEGMENT INFORMATION
1.

Primary segment information

For management purposes the Bank is organised into three major business segments:
-

Retail banking.

-

Corporate banking: Principally handling loans and other credit facilities and deposit and current accounts
for corporate and institutional customers;
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-

Treasury: Principally providing money market, trading and treasury services, as well as the management
of the Bank’s funding operations by use of treasury bills, government securities and placements and
acceptances with other banks, through treasury and wholesale banking.

These segments are the basis on which the Bank reports its primary segment information.
Corporate
Retail Banking Banking
JD
JD
Total income
Impairment loss on credit facilities
Segmental results
Unallocated expenses

Total
Treasury
JD

13,382,176 16,522,827 21,530,005
(6,378) (475,000)
(762,446)
8,689,132 8,809,899 13,373,753
-

Other
JD
(245,561)
(245,561)
-

2008
JD

2007
JD

51,189,447 50,517,485
(1 ,243,824)
20,351
30,627,223 28,951,414
(15,639,291) (13,736,174)

Proﬁt before tax
Income tax

-

-

-

-

14,987,932
(5,068,049)

15,215,240
(4,657,272)

NET PROFIT (LOSS)

-

-

-

-

9,919,883

10,557,968

Other information
Segmental assets
Unallocated segmental assets

110,836,209 132,885,051 328,843,289
14,441,679
-

572,564,549 585,907,032
14,441,679 15,273,020

TOTAL ASSETS

110,836,209 132,885,051 328,843,289 14,441,679

587,006,228 601,180,052

Segmental liabilities
Unallocated segmental liabilities

321,396,481 81,580,249 87,688,511
11,237,383
-

490,665,241 512,534,139
11,237,383 11,301,146

TOTAL LIABILITIES

321,396,481 81,580,249 87,688,511 11,237,383

501,902,624 523,835,285

Capital expenditure
Depreciation and amortisation
2.

1,160,265
1,268,128

4,429,070
1,193,607

Geographical Information

The following table shows the distribution of the Bank’s operating income and capital expenditure by
geographical segment:

Jordan
2008
JD

Total proﬁts
Total assets
Capital expenditure

46,175,319
486,580,584
1,160,265

Outside Jordan
2007
JD

2008
JD

2007
JD

Total
2008
JD

43,047,896
5,014,128
7,469,589 51,189,447
443,558,619 100,425,644 157,621,433 587,006,228
4,429,070
1,160,265

2007
JD
50,517,485
601,180,052
4,429,070
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40. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
a. Description of what is considered capital:
The primary capital of the Bank comprises the following:
-

Present capital (paid).
Registered provisions: (legal reserve, voluntary reserve)
Retained earnings after deducting any deferred taxations or any other restricted amounts.
Investments in capitals of banks and other ﬁnancial institutions shall be deducted.

The Bank’s supplementary capital comprises the following:
Cumulative change in the fair value of the assets available for sale, which undergoes a 55% discount in
case it is positive, and is fully included if negative.
General banking risks reserve.
The Bank’s regulatory capital comprises the primary and supplementary capitals.
b. Capital Requirements of the Monitoring Authority
The Central Bank of Jordan’s instructions require that the regulatory capital minimum limit is an equivalent of
(12%) of the assets and credit-weighted off-balance sheet items in addition to market risks. This percentage
is considered the minimum limit to capital adequacy, as the Bank is committed in all cases to maintaining an
adequacy percentage exceeding the minimum limit with a suitable margin, and conforming to the requirements
of BASEL II.
c.

Methods in Achieving the Capital Management Objectives

Capital management involves the optimal employment of fund resources for the purpose of achieving the
highest possible revenue on the capital, while maintaining the minimum limit required in accordance with laws
and regulations. The Bank follows a policy based on striving to reduce cost of funds to the minimal possible
limit through originating low-cost fund resources, working on increasing the client base, and the optimal
employment of such resources in investments with reasonable risks to achieve the highest possible revenue on
capital.
d. Capital Adequacy Rate
Capital adequacy rate is calculated in compliance with the instructions issued by the Central Bank of Jordan
which are based on Basel Committee decisions. The following represent capital adequacy compared to the
previous duration:
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2008
JD 000

2007
JD 000

Primary capital
Paid up capital
Statutory reserve
Voluntary reserve
Retained earnings
Less: Intangible assets
Total Primary capital

64,472
10,061
598
7,629
(876)
81,884

56,062
8,562
421
8,441
73,486

Supplementary capital
Cumulative change in fair value
General banking risk reserve
Total Supplementary capital
Less: Investments in banks and ﬁnancial institutions equity

(890)
2,774
1,884
(1,537)

572
2,530
3,102
(2,507)

TOTAL AUTHORISED CAPITAL

82,231

74,081

258,588
31,8%
31,37%

379,560
19,52%
18,70%

Total risk weighted assets
Capital adequacy (%)
Primary capital (%)

41. MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be
recovered or settled:

2008
Assets

Within
1 year
JD

More than
1 year
JD

Total
JD

67,091,186
99,500,957
4,163,370
2,862

1,063,500
-

67,091,186
99,500,957
5,226,870
2,862

Direct credit facilities
Financial assets available for sale
Property and equipment
Other intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Other assets
Total Assets

144,797,048
73,127,713
1,000,000
300,000
2,990,602
392,973,738

122,462,925
54,582,516
9,547,799
576,273
458,762
5,340,715
194,032,490

267,259,973
127,710,229
10,547,799
876,273
458,762
8,331,317
587,006,228

Liabilities
Banks and ﬁnancial institution deposits
Customers’ deposits
Margin accounts
Loans and borrowings
Sundry provisions
Income tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities
Total Liabilities

75,624,992
333,799,804
56,022,749
9,275,410
5,952,877
10,638,712
491,314,544

262,022
4,466,074
1,194,271
4,665,713
10,588,080

75,624,992
334,061,826
56,022,749
13,741,484
1,194,271
5,952,877
15,304,425
501,902,624

NET ASSETS

(98,340,806)

183,444,410

85,103,604

Cash and balances at Central Banks
Balances at banks and ﬁnancial institutions
Deposits at banks and ﬁnancial institutions
Financial assets held for trading
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2007-

Within
1 year
JD

More than 1
year
JD

Total
JD

Assets
Cash and balances at Central Banks
Balances at banks and ﬁnancial institutions
Deposits at banks and ﬁnancial institutions
Financial assets held for trading

46,990,561
158,863,426
359,166

1,169,850
-

46,990,561
158,863,426
1,169,850
359,166

Direct credit facilities
Financial assets available for sale
Property and equipment
Other intangible assets
Other assets
Deferred tax assets
Total Assets

151,030,963
41,682,074
900,000
300,000
3,224,475
403,350,665

116,077,059
64,336,519
10,000,789
624,447
5,563,803
56,920
197,829,387

267,108,022
106,018,593
10,900,789
924,447
8,788,278
56,920
601,180,052

Liabilities
Banks and ﬁnancial institution deposits
Customers’ deposits
Margin accounts
Loans and borrowings
Sundry provisions
Income tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities
Total Liabilities

75,157,123
367,279,219
18,411,069
1,254,224
5,408,145
17,145,922
484,655,702

354,830
20,580,562
13,739,621
452,728
365,017
3,686,825
39,179,583

75,157,123
367,634,049
38,991,631
14,993,845
452,728
5,408,145
365,017
20,832,747
523,835,285

NET ASSETS

(81,305,037)

158,649,804

77,344,767

42. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
To meet the ﬁnancial needs of customers, the Bank enters into various irrevocable commitments and contingent
liabilities. Even though these obligations may not be recognised on the balance sheet, they do contain credit
risk and are therefore part of the overall risk of the Bank.
a.

The total outstanding commitments and contingent liabilities are as follows:
2008
JD

Letters of credit
Export LCs
Import LCs
Acceptances
Letters of guarantee Payments
Performance
Other
Irrevocable commitments to extend credit
Other

TOTAL
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2007
JD

31,070,225
5,059,905
2,316,741

34,698,537
17,783,634
7,566,398

28,942,918
29,698,328
21,152,003
58,135,531

30,800,740
15,336,474
18,913,933
47,523,419

176,375,651

172,623,135
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43. LAWSUITS
In the normal course of business the Bank appears as a defendant in a number of lawsuits amounting to
approximately JD 1,598,200 as of December 31, 2008 (2007: JD 1,424,299). According to the Bank’s lawyer
and Bank’s Management, no material liability will arise as a result of these lawsuits in excess of the amounts
already provided for amounting to JD 968,119 as of December 31, 2008 (2007: JD 165,500).

44. NEW ISSUED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The following standards and interpretations have been issued but are not yet effective.
IFRS 3R Business Combinations and IAS 27R Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
The revised standards were issued in January 2008 and become effective for ﬁnancial years beginning on
or after 1 July 2009. IFRS 3R introduces a number of changes in the accounting for business combinations
occurring after this date that will impact the amount of goodwill recognised, the reported results in the period
that an acquisition occurs, and future reported results. IAS 27R requires that a change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary (without loss of control) is accounted for as an equity transaction. Therefore, such transactions
will no longer give rise to goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain or loss. Furthermore, the amended standard
changes the accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary as well as the loss of control of a subsidiary.
Other consequential amendments were made to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, IAS 12 Income Taxes, IAS 21.
The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, IAS 28 Investment in Associates and IAS 31 Interests in Joint
Ventures. The changes by IFRS 3R and IAS 27R will affect future acquisitions or loss of control and transactions
with minority interests.

IAS 1 Revised Presentation of Financial Statements
The revised Standard was issued in September 2007 and becomes effective for ﬁnancial years beginning on or
after 1 January 2009. The Standard separates owner and non-owner changes in equity. The statement of changes
in equity will include only details of transactions with owners, with non-owner changes in equity presented as
a single line. In addition, the Standard introduces the statement of comprehensive income which presents all
items of recognised income and expense, either in one single statement, or in two linked statements. The Bank
is still evaluating whether it will have one or two statements.

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements –
Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
These amendments to IAS 32 and IAS 1 were issued in February 2008 and become effective for ﬁnancial years
beginning on or after 1 January 2009. The revisions provide a limited scope exception for puttable instruments to
be classiﬁed as equity if they fulﬁl a number of speciﬁed features. The amendments to the standards will have
no impact on the ﬁnancial position or performance of the Bank, as the Bank has not issued such instruments.

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement – Eligible Hedged Items
These amendments to IAS 39 were issued in August 2008 and become effective for ﬁnancial years beginning on
or after 1 July 2009. The amendment addresses the designation of a one-sided risk in a hedged item, and the
designation of inﬂation as a hedged risk or portion in particular situations. It clariﬁes that an entity is permitted
to designate a portion of the fair value changes or cash ﬂow variability of a ﬁnancial instrument as hedged item.
The Company has concluded that the amendment will have no impact on the ﬁnancial position or performance
of the Bank, as the Bank has not entered into any such hedges.

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
IFRIC 16 was issued in July 2008 and becomes effective for ﬁnancial years beginning on or after 1 October 2008.
The interpretation is to be applied prospectively. IFRIC 16 provides guidance on the accounting for a hedge of
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a net investment. As such it provides guidance on identifying the foreign currency risks that qualify for hedge
accounting in the hedge of a net investment, where within the Group the hedging instruments can be held
in the hedge of a net investment and how an entity should determine the amount of foreign currency gain
or loss, relating to both the net investment and the hedging instrument, to be recycled on disposal of the net
investment. The Bank is currently assessing which accounting policy to adopt for the recycling on disposal of the
net investment.

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment (Revised)
The IASB issued an amendment to IFRS 2 in January 2008 that clariﬁes the deﬁnition of a vesting condition
and prescribes the treatment for an award that is effectively cancelled. This amendment becomes effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009. The amendment is not expected to have any impact on
the ﬁnancial position or performance of the Bank.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments
The IASB issued IFRS 8 in November 2006. IFRS 8 replaces IAS 14 Segment Reporting (IAS 14) upon its effective
date. This amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009. Operating
segments are expected to be the same as currently identiﬁed business segments under IAS 14.

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs (Revised)
The IASB issued an amendment to IAS 23 in April 2007. The revised IAS 23 requires capitalisation of borrowing
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. This
amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009. The amendment is not
expected to have any impact on the ﬁnancial position or performance of the Bank.

45. COMPARATIVE FIGURES:
Some of 2007 balances were reclassiﬁed to correspond with those of 2008 presentation. The reclassiﬁcation has
no effect on the proﬁt for the year and equity.
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